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Reportof the Governing Body

OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGY

The Governing Body present their Annual Report with the Financial Statements and Auditor's
Report for Activate Learning for the year ended 319 July 2020,

Legal Status

Activate Leaming (the Corporation) s a Further Education Corporation established on 1 April
2003 under the provisions of the Further and Higher Education Act 1992, for the purpcse of
conducting the business of Oxford and Cherwell College. The College is an exempt charity
under Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011 and is regulated by the Secretary of State for Education
as Principal Reguiator for all Further Education Corporations in England. The members of the
Corporation Body, who are trustees of the charity, are disclosed on pages 16 and 17.

Cn 1 August 2003, the property, rights and liabiliies of Oxford College of Further Education,
North Oxfordshire College and Rycotewood College were transferred to Oxford and Cherwell

College.

On 17 August 2005, the Corporation changed its name to Oxford and Cherwell Valley College
Corparatian {QCVC).

On 1 August 2012, the assets and business of Reading College Limited were transferred to
the OCWC Corporation.

On 1 September 2013, OCVC changed its name to Activate Learning, while maintaining local
college names: City of Oxford College. Banbury and Bicester College and Reading College.

On 1 June 2014, the apprenticeship and consultancy business of Activate Learning was
transferred to Activate Enterprise Limited. a wholly ewned subsidiary of the Corporation. This
ncluded the activilies of Rocket Consultancy Limited. which were acquired in 2013

During 2014/15 the group acquired & 37% share in The Oxfordshire Partnership LLC, an
associale operating in Saudi Arsbia, via s subsidiary undertaking, Activate Learning
Investrments Limited.

on 1 June 2016 Activate Leaming became the sole member of ATG Training Lented, a
company imited by guarantee and charity (registered charity number 1082802). ATG Training
Limited was disscived in December 2019, subsequent to all assats, liabdities and activities
being transferred to the Corporation.

On 10 January 2019 the assels and liabilties of Bracknell and Wokingham College were
assigned through a 'Type B' merger of Further Education Corporations.

On 28 March 2019, the assets and liabilties of the Guildford College Group were assigned
through a Type B' merger of Further Education Corporations,

in Seplember 2019, Activate Leaming acquired the remaining shares of The Oxford
Partnership LLC. As a result, the Financal Statements for the year ended 31% July 2020
include the benefit of its full consolidation as a wholly owned subsidiary.
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Public Benaefit

In satting and reviewing the Corporation's sirategic objectives, the Governing Body has had
due regard for the Charity Commission's guidance on public benefit and particularly upen its
sugplementary guidance on the advancement of education. The guidance sefs oul the
requrernent that all organisations wishing to be recognised as charities must demonstrate,
expicitly, that their aims are for the public benefit

In delivering its mission, the Corporation provides identifiable public benefits through the
advancament of education:

High quality teaching and learning

Widening participation and tackhng social exclusion
Routes into employment for students

Strong student support systems

Links with employers, industry and commerce

Mission

Providing talent for business, transforming lives through our learning philcsophy .

Wision

Toachieve far reaching progressive change and impact through learming.

Strateqic Plan

The Group's Strategic Plan fer the pericd 2017 to 2021 sets out our ambition for growth and
development over the period, Althe plan’s core s a redefining of both learning and the leaming
prefessional, together with @ drive to ensunng a dynamic network of business partnerships.
W call this 'Learning Reimagined’

The strategy establishes two key sirategic cbjectives, which are monttored through key
performance indicators:

« To provide an innovative, responsive curricudum that buillds a talent pipefine for
businass.
+ To provide teaching, leaming and assessment that drives individual progress and
progression,
Ve measure our progress through key performance indicatars related tor

¢ Livestransformed
= Firet Choice for Business
Reputation for Excellence
Measures are tracked in each dvision to ensure group wide alignment with the plan
CURRENT AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE

hefivate Leamning cperates activities from a number of college campuses across Berkshire,
Cefordshire and Surrey:
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Banbury and Bicester College

Bracknell & Wokingham College

City of Oxford College (including the Technalogy Campus at Blackbird Leys)
Farnham 8™ Form Callege

Guildford College

Merrist Wood College

Reading College

" W N N O B W

The Corporation owns 100% of the shares in The Oxford Partnership LLP, a company
registered in Saudi Arabia. The Oxford Partnership operates colleges for female students in
Saudi Arabia under contract from Colleges of Excellence, an agency of the Saudi govemmant.
A contract renewal is currently being scught. The Corporation also owns 100% of the shares
in Activate Enterprise Limited, an apprenticeship training provider, which works directly with
employers and uses college campuses as apprapriate.

Activity is structured into Operating Divisions, which are managed by locally based Executives
The Group oversees the running of the Divissons and provides group wide shared services, A
cross campus faculty structure provides consistent quality of defivery,

This structure has strengthened local focus while making best use of shared resources,
facilitating growth. The Group has greater access to funding and a sironger voice when it
comes to working with regional and national agencies and other stakeholders.

Activate Learning is a member and sponsor of Activate Learning Education Trust (ALET). An
independent Board controls ALET and the results are not consclidated within these Financial
Statements, ALET has multi acadermy status having an individual funding agreement with the
Secretary of State and an independsant gwernance structure as set out in the Academies
Financial Handbook (Sept 2019).

The multi-academy trust governs The Bicester Schoal, Bicaster Technology Studio. Theale
Green School, UTC Swindon, UTEC Oxfordshire, UTC Reading and UTC Heathraw,

Financial Objectives

The Corporation's overniding financial strategy is to drive income growth and cost efficeency to
ganerate cash for re-investment.

This strategy confinues to be underpinned by ongoing financial objectives:

* Toidentify, develop and implement key strategic opportunities for new and expanding
revenue income streams, as well as growth through acquisition in new and existing
markets.

*» To develop financial strategies to ensure budgets and operational plans improve the
group's solvency and support resource utifisation.

* To develop financial sysiems to ensure timely financial information for senior
management and budget holders that support decison-making processes.

= Toencourage a culture of open financial accountability and value for money across all
activitbies.

* Toidentify efficiencies across all activities to maximise both a cash surplus and protect
front-line core delivery,

Together, these objectives are intended to improve the underlying financial health of the
Group.
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The mergers completed in the year ended 31% July 2019 fully supported achievement of the
financial strategy and objectives. The additional scale affords considerable opportunity 10
generate additional efficiency and longer term income growth.

Pedormance Indicators

The Ceorporation regularly reviews financial performance and has set a senes of
comprehensive key financial performance indicalars.

The table below shows performance against onginal targets for the year ended 31 July 2020
that were agreed following the merger processes in 2019:

KPI Target Actual
Serior EBIMDA &5 % of mcome T.6% 755
Siaff cost as % of meame &% Gd%h
Claging cash balance E0.Bm E10.6m
Adjusted cument ratio 1.0 an
Bemowing ag % of income « Hr% %
Francial health score Requires mproverment Czood

The KPIls exclude the impact of consobdating results af The Oxford Partnership LLP

The Corporation is committed to observing the importance of sector measures and mndicators
and uses the FE Choices website that looks at measures such as SUCCEss rates. Tha
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) produces a Financial Health grading for ali
Futher Education providers, based on regular financial data submissions. The rating for
ActivateLeaming has been ‘GOOD fora number of years with sustained improvement against
sl measures, The calculation for the year ended 31* July 2020 misrepresents the purpose of
grant funding received fo enable integration of nawly merged calleges, generating a measure
of Requires Improvement . ESFA officialshave recognised this is an inaccurate approach and
ages that the appropriate measure is ‘Goad . as shown above. The consolidation af The
Ohford Partnership LLP generates a score of Outstanding’ for 201920

Financial Results

The Consalidated Statements of Comprehensive Income account on page 31 consohdates
e results of Activate Learning, Activate Enterprise Limited and The Oxford Partnership. A
summary of the Group's income and expenditure i analysad over the page.

Increases in income and surplus were achieved through merger related growth and SUCCESS
of The Ovxford Partnership which is now consclidated. The year fo 31 July 2020 includes the
ful year operation of colleges acquired through merger in 2019 (Bracknell & Wokingham,
Guildford, Merrist Wood and Farnham). whereas the prior year comparison includes part year
orly subseguent to Mergers

& number of income streams were interrupted by the disruption causad by the COVID-18
pandemic, materially affectingthe surplus forthe year It is esfimated that up to £4m of income
was lost, which reduced EBITDA and the total surplus by argund £1.5m.

Despite losses due to COVID-19, the Corporation is reporting a surplus (excluding FRS102
sension adjustments and exceptional items) of £13.3m (2019 £3.1m). The Group has
accumulated reserves of £137 6m (excluding pension liability of £97.5m) and cash balances
of £15.2m.
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Summary of Results

£000s 20159720 201819

Activate Activaie The Ouford  Consal, Group Group
Leamming Enterprise  Partnership Adj,

Tedal income 88,831 7,542 32215 (15,385} 115482 Ga.7va
Total expandivn {B0,380) (B,066) {25,122) 11385 (102,183)  (66GES)
Surplus 1 (deficit] for the
year before FRE102
adjustments and & 551 {374) 7,053 i} 13,270 3054
exceptional tems

3 :
FRE 102 panskon service (4, 162) (4.162) (3,408)
ot
FRS 102 pension Inlerest (1.442) (1447 983)
charge
Surplus | (deficit) for the
year belore exceptional 547 (374} 7,053 Li] 7666 {1,288}
ema
irioqeiinte (10,735) 10,738)  (3.758
restructuring . (10, i
Condional grant release 10,347 10,347 16,628
Loss on disposal of assels [329] (328} 0
Share of operating loss in

7

2 i (2470 (2470} 218
Acquirad balance sheet of
e {1,266} (1,286} 41,673
Total surplusi (deficit)
B s i T (374) 3357 o 3,253 53 488

Treasury Policies and Objectives

Treasury management is the management of the Group's cash flows, its banking, money
market and capital market transactions, the effective control of the risks associated with those
activities, and pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.

All barrowing requires the authorisation of the Carparation and complies with the requirements
of the Financial Memorandum with the ESFA,

Cash Flows and Liguidity

In fotal, activity within the year generated a cash inflow of £9.2m_ Operating cash flow (after
spend of £10.7m on merger transition costs) was a net cash out-flow of £5 5m (2019 out-flow
of £0.2m). The size of the Group's total borrowing and its approach to interest rate has been
calculated to ensure a reasonable cushion between the fotal cost of servicing debt and
operating cash flow Duning the year, this margin was comfortable excesded,
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Heserves

The Group has no formal Reserves Paolicy but recognises the importance of reserves in the
financial stability of any organisation and ensures that there are adequate reserves to support
the College's core activities. As at the balance sheet date the Income and Expenditure reserve
stands at £125.8m before pension Babilities (2019: £116,7m). [tis the Corporation's intention
10 horeasa reserves over the life of the strategic plan through the generation of annual
aperating surpluses.

Financial Health

Aenoted above the ESFA measure of Financial Health is "Good'. Lending covenants have
besn mel.

Swdent numbers
The Group had 20,252 learners in the penod (2018: 23,042},
Achiswvements

Achisvement rate for the Group is B4.4% (2019 84.5%) which compares with the |atest
published national benchmark of 86 7%

Ingpection

Activate Learming was inspected by Ofsted in December 2017. The Corporation was rated as
‘Good' for Overall Effectivenass, with 'Good' grades of Leadership & Management, Teaching,
Learning & Assessment, Personal Development, Behaviour and Welfare, and Student
Outcomes, An ‘Outstanding’ grade was awarded for students with High needs.

Paticular strengths noted in the inspection report included: the preparation of learners for
empioyment through the development of Aftributes, and the positive destinabons held by our
shrlents, good professional development of feachers that has an impact on the quality of
teaching and learning, effective leadership and governance with a clear sirategic directon for
the organisatian.

Future inspections will incorporate the colleges acquired through merger in 2019
Curriculum Developments

The group has initiated significant curriculum redesign in order to realise the ambition and
sirategic objectives within Leaming Reimagined. Following a complete curriculum review
acress all faculties, a curriculum framework articulating curriculum commitment and design
principles has been created The framework informs 2 consistent approach to the design and
construction of programmes at different stages in each career pathway, The four main
eurficLium componans consisting of traditional knowledge (Vocational, English, Mathematics
and Work Experience), Weliness (Pastoral, Tutorial, Progress Reviews) Atributes
Development and Global Literacy and Citizenship are combine to create differentiated
pregrammes of study that provide the knowledge, skills and attributes learmers need fo
progress between stages of their career pathway .

14
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The year ended 31* July 2020 was a second successful year of implementing the new
cumicuium components with an integrated approach to business planning, guality
improvemeant and currculum design.

Our internal reviews utilise the criteria within the new Ofsted Education Inspection framework,
which has a stronger focus on cumiculum intent, implementation and impact, The reviews

enable us to gain greater clarty on how each curriculum component should be planned,
delivered and facilitated at different stages of leaming. We continue to consider potential
changes to the facilitation of curriculum and the roles and configurations of the leaming

professional teams.

Qur approach to curiiculum design will nat only lead to an improve student experience, but
also longer term value through efficiency and resource utilisation across sites The
harmonisation has enabled the efficient integration of our recently merged collages.

2019/20 saw the Group continue to implement the Digtal Strategy identified in 2019,
develaping staff skills, infrastructure investment and embedding digital skills in avery stage of
the career pathway. The progress to date enabled staff and learmers 1o respond im mediately
to the disruption caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, successfully maintaining teaching and
learning remotely when campuses were inaccessible.

Fayment Performance

The Late Payment of Commercial Debts Interest Act 1998, which came into force on the 1&t
of November 1888, requires Corporations, in the absence of agreement to the contrary, fo
make payments to suppliers within 30 days of either their provision of goods or services or the
date on which the invoice was received. The target set by The Treasury for payment fo
supphers within 30 days is 85%. The group makes every endeavour to adhere to this target.

Future Developments

Following the merger related expansion during 2019, the Corporation is focused on
consolidation, infegration and defivering the scale driven efficiency upon which the business
case for the mergers was based. Underlying financial performance illustrated in thess
statements 15 belter than projected in the business case and helped further by the
censolidation of The Oxford Partnership and it is our ambition to maintain that Emprovement
Student number growth is targeted when recent downward demographic frends reverse.

Merger related ESFA supported nvestment in quality and infrastructure improvement thraugh
the year ended 31 July 2020 will ensure the organisation is robust and can achieve future
growth,

Having due regard to the current position and principal risks the Corporation believes it will be
able to continue in operation and meet all liabilities on an ongoing basis.

RESOURCES
The group has various resources that it can deploy In pursuit of its sirategic objectivas,
Financial

The Corporation has £40.1m of accumulated reserves (after a provision of £97 5m for pension
liability)

"
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People

On average, the group employed 2,300 staff through the year ended 31% July 2020, of whom
B0E were teaching staff.

Reputation

The group has & good reputation |ocally and nationally whichis impartant farit to be succassiul
in attracting students and external relationships

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Corporation has developed and embedded a system of mternal control, including
financial, operational and risk management, which is designad 1o protect the Groug's assets

and reputation,

Based on the strategic plan, the Corporation undertakes a comprehensive review of the risks
to which the group is exposed. They wentify systems and procedures, including specific
preveniable actions which should mitigate any potential impact on the group, The intemal
controls are then implemented and the subseguent years appraisal will raview their
effectiveness and progress against risk mitigation achans.

In addition to annual review, the Corporation will also consider any nsk which may arise as a
result of a new area of work being undertaken by the Group.

A risk register is maintained which is reviewed regularly by the Corporation and by the Audit
and Risk committee, The risk register identifies the key risks, the likelihood of those risks
peeurring, their potential impact on the group and the actions being taken to reduce and
migate the risks, Risks are prionfised using a consistent scoring system.

Oufined below is a list of some of the principle risk factors that may prevent the Group
achieving its objectives, along with miigations that are in place. Mot all the factors are within
the Group's control. Other factars besides those listed below may also adversely affect the
Group:

« Failure to achieve the growth or financial performancethat underpins the Leaming Re-
Imagnad sirategy

This confinwes to be mitigated through a senes of activities, including the 2018 merger
processes and resulting synergies (growth), robust markeling plans informed by local
market assessment and employer relationstips (growth), specific stralegic plans for
adults: HE; Apprenticeships (growth) and a clear financial stralegy with robust largels
{financial performance)

« Unable to recruit or retain high quality employees across some disciplines
This has been a focus through the year with additional expenenced resource in place,
revised staff recrutment processes as well as monitaring of emplayment trends and
the competitiveness of the Group's offer.

« Failure to improve timely and overall apprenticeship achievement rates

L
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With the merger driven growth, the risk of apprenticeship qually increases in
significance, Miligations are cross group, including management shadowing of learner
review meelings, additional resources in key funclions and ensuring external validation
of processes and sysiem improvemants,

The implications of the COVID-18 pandemic on business continuity, keaming, employes
wellbeing and financial sustainability has been added to the Groug risk register during the
year. While many non-core income streams were impacted by leckdown in 2020 and EBITDA
reduced by around £1.5m as a result, learning was maintained effectively for the majority of
lsarmers. With disruption likely to continue into 2021, maintaining the quality of learning and
minimising the financial impact will be the ongoing focus of mitigations. 16 - 18 year old student
recruitment in Autumn 2020 has been broadly in line with expectations and all colleges are
operating n lne with government guidance Retaining these leamers through further
‘ockdowns' is a priority focus, Ongoing restrictions of access to campus facilites for other
leaners will continue fo place some income generation at risk. Caontinuing to innovate delivery
remains a priority to maximise revenue. The organisation is well placed to support the need
for re-skiling due to the expected increase in rates of unemployment resulting from the
pandemic and is accessang funding to do so

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS

In line with other Corparations and with Universities, Activate Leaming has many stekeholders.
These include students, funding agencies, staff, local employers (with spacific inks), local
authorities, government offices, the local community, other Further Education institutions,
University partners, trade wnions and professional bodies The Group recognises the
importance of these relationships and engages in regular communication with them.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY

The Group is committed to ensuring equality of opportunity for all who learn and wark with us.
Activate Leamning believes there should be no limits to achievement and as well as celebrating
the individual talents of all staff and students. we challenge discrimination and strive to remave
barriers which place people at a disadvantage.

The Group publishes an annual Equality Repert and Equality Objectives to ensure compliance
with all relevant equality legisiation, including the Equality Act 2010, The Group undertakes
equality impact assessments on new policies and procedures. Equality impact assessments
are also undertaken for existing policies and procedures on a prioritised basis.

The safeguarding protocols for the Group ensure thal staff and learners are aware that
safeguarding is the responsibility of everyone.

DISABILITY STATEMENT

The group seeks to achieve the objectives set down in the Disability Discrimination Act 1995
as amended by the Special Education Needs and Disability Act 2001 and 2005. In particular,
the Group makes the following commitments:

+ As part of the redevelopment of buildings, the Group is instaling lifts and ramps etc.
so that eventually mest of the faciliies will allow sccess to pecple with a disability

* There is a list of specialist equipment, lighting, audio faciities etc. which the Group can
make available for use by students:

13
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+  The admissions palicy for all students is described in the Group charter, with an appeal
pracess against a decision not fo offer a place dealt with under the complaints policy ;

+ The Group has made a significant investment in the appaintment of specialist lecturers
ta support studants with learning difficuities and [ or disabilities. There is a number of
student support assistants who can provide a variety of support for learming. There is
a cantinuing programme of staff development to ensure the pravision of a high bevel of
appropriate support for students who have learning difficulties and / or disabilites,

« Specighist programmes are described In programme information guides, and
achievements and destinations are recorded and published in the standard group
farmat;

« Counseling and welfare services are described in the Group charter.

The group considers all applications for employment from disabled persons, bearing in mind
the aptitudes of the individuats concerned and guarani®es an mterview to any disabled
applicant who meets the essential criteria for the post. Whera an existing employes becomes
dissbiled, every effort is made to ensure that employment with the Group continues. The
Group's policy is to provide traiming, career development and opportunities for promotion
which are, as far as possible, identical to thosa for other employees.

The group i 8 "Positive about Disabled employer and has committed to the principles and
ohiectives of the ‘Positive about Disabled’ standard.

TRADE UNION FACILITY TIME

The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements} Regulations 2017 require the
Group to publish information on facility time arrangements for trade union officials in the
warkforce,

The group had nine employess that this refates to in 201920 with the time being spent an
approximate cost shown below:

Percentage of time Number of employees

1} 3 i
1-50% 4
51-89% a
100°% 0

Total cost of facility time E5, 940
Telal pay bill E41,816,820
Parcentage of total bill spent on facility time 0.01%

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATIONTO AUDITORS

The members who held office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they
are each aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group’s auditors are
unaware and each member has taken all the steps that he or she ought o have taken to be
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditors are aware
of that information.

14
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Approved by order of the members of the Corparation on 7" December 2020 and signed on
its behalf by:

| Shy 4

Sue Emrge”dﬁ:ém}r

15
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control

The fellowing statemart is provided to enable readers of the Annual Repart ard Financial
Statements of the Group to obtain a better understanding of its governance and legal structure.
This staterment covers the period from the 1 August 2019 1o the 31* July 2020 and up to the
date of approval of the Annual Report and Financial Statements.

The Group endeavours to conduct its business:

« in accordance with the seven principles identified by the Committee on Standards in
public iife (sefflessness, integrity, objectiveness, accountabiity, openness, honesty
and beadership); and

«  in full accordance with the guidance to colleges from the Association of Colleges in the
Code of Geod Governance for English colleges ('the Code’).

The Group is committed to exhibiting best practice in all aspects of corporate governance and
in particular the Group has adopted and complied with the Code. We have not adopted and
therefare do not apply the UK Corporate Governance Code. However, we have reparted an
aur Corporate Governance arrangements by drawing upon best praciice available, which may
include aspects of the LK Corporate Governance Code relevant to the further education sactor
and best practice.

I the apinion of the Governors the Group complies with the provisions of the Code. and it has
camplied throughout the year ended 31st July 2020. The Governing Body recognises that, as
a body entrusted with beth public and private funds, it has a particular duty to observe the
highest standards of corporate governance at all tmes. In carrying cut its responsibiliies i
takes full account of the Code issued by the Association of Colleges in March 2015, which it
formally adopted in December 20135.

The Corparation

The members who served the Corporation during the year and up to the date of signature of
\hiz report were as follows:

Date of Term Status of Attendance | Committeos
Appointment | of Appointment | at Served

Office Corporation
Meetings

Sally Dicketts Ex CEOQ 100%; Search &
afficio GoveEmance
Sue Sturgeon 01.04.1% 2 years Extemnal — 100% Search &
Merger Pafnes Eovemance;
Remuneration
Chrks Jones 280311 4 years Extemal 1% Search &
Reappainted: Govemance,
2B.03,15 Remuneration
16.07. 18
Resigned:

20.07.20

14



Maire Brankin

Evelyn Jarmes

James Dipple

Tracey James

Demot Mathias

Pauline Odulinski

Mina Robinzan

Malzalm Wicks

Julia Wan
Klenowski

Andrew Stone

John Copa
David Goosey

Emma Shipp

Richard Alben

Ben Sims

18.10.11
Reappointed:
171015
Resigned;
30.09.18

18.07_12
Reappointed:
17.07.18
Resigned:
16.03.20

0807 .14
Reappoinbed:
15.06. 18

17.07.15

Resppointed:
20,0317

Z2.03.16
Reappoirad:
2004 20

0B.07 14
Reappointed:
18.06.18

240315

Fesppainted:
24.03.18

12.07.16
Reappointed:
2000420

14.10.14

Reappailed
16. 10,17

01.04.19

08.12.18
e 1218

08.12.19

Q51218
Fesigned:
20.01.20

111247
Reappointed:
Qo 12 18

4 years

4 years

4 years

# years

4 years

4 years

4 years

4 years

4 years

2 years

4 yEars

4 years
4 yaars

1 year

2 years

Extemal

Extarmnal

Extamal

Extenal

Extamal

Extennal

Extermal

Extemal

External

Extemal -
Merger Pariner

Extemnal

Extemal
Extemal

Intemal -
Student

Internal - Staff
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100%

33%

%

BEM

1%

BE

1%

100%

T1%

1005

100%

Mo
aitended

T

Audil & Risk

Audit & Risk

Search &
Govermnance:
Remuneration

Audik & Risk;
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Jamia Wade serves as Clark to the Corporation

It is the Caorporation’s respansibiity to bring independent judgement to bear on Issues of
strategy, performance, resources and standards of conduct

The Corporation is provided with regular and timely information on the averall financial
performance of the Group together with other information such as performance against
funding targets, proposed capital expenditure, quality matters and personned related matters
such as health and safety and environmental issues. The Corporation meets seven times in
gach year,

The Corporation conducts its business through a number of commitiees. Each commities has
ems of reference, which have been approved by the Corporation. These commitiees are
‘Remuperation’, ‘Search and Governance' and ‘Audit and Risk. Full minutes of all mestings,
except those deemed to be confidential by the Corporation, are available on the college
website at www.activatelearning. ac_uk or from the Clerk to the Corporation at

Ackvate Learming,
Oxpens Road,
Ochord,

OX115A

The Clark to the Corporation maintaing a register of financial and personal interests of the
Gavernars. The register is available for inspection at the above address.

All members are able to take independent professional advice in furtherance of their duties at
the Group's expense and have access fo the Clerk to the Corperation, who is responsible 1o
the Board for ensuring that all applicable procedures and regulations are compled with, The
appointment, evaluation and removal of the Clark are matters for the Corporation as a whale.

Farmal agendas, papers and reports are supplied to Govemnors in a timely manner, prior 1o
board meetings. Briefings are also provided on an ad-hoc basis.

The Corporation has a strong and independent non-executive element and no indwidual or
Group dominates its decision making process. The Corporation considers that each of its non-
exscutiva members is independent of management and free from any business or ciher
relationship which could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement.

There is a clear division of responsibility in that the roles of the Chair of the Corporation and
Chiaf Executive Officer of the Group are saparate,

Appointments to the Corporation

Any new appointments 1o the Corporation are a matter for consideration of the Corporation as
a whale, The Corporation has a ‘Search Committee’ which is responsible for the salection and
nomination of any new member for the Corporation's consideration, The Corporation is
responsible for ensuring that appropriate training is provided as required.

Members of the Corporation are appeinted for a term of office notexceeding 4 years

&
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Corporation Performance

The Corporation carried cut a self-assessment of its awn performance for the year ended 31
July 2020 and graded itself as ‘Good’ overall.

Remuneration Committes

Throughout the year ending 31st July 2020, the Group's ‘Remuneration Committee’ had five
members. The Committee’s responsibilities are to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration and benefits of the Group Chief Executive and other senior post-holders.

Deetails of remuneration for the year ended 31* July 2020 are set out in Note 8 of the Financial
Staternents.

Audit and Risk Committes

The 'Audit and Risk Committee’ comprises five members of the Corporation {who exclude the
Group Chief Executive Officer and Chairman) and one co-cpted member. The Commithes
operates in accordance with written Terms of Reference approved by the Corporation. Its
purpose is fo advise the Corparation on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's system
of internal controf and its arrangements for risk management, contrel and govemnance
Processes.

The "Audit and Risk Committee’ meets three or more times in each year and provides a forum
for reporting by the Group's internal and financial statement auditors, who have access to the
committes for independent discussion, without the presence of Group management. The
Committee may also occasionally receive and consider reports from the ESFA, as they affect
the Group's business,

The Group's internal auditors monitor the systems of internal control, risk management
confrols and governance processes in accordance with an agreed plan and report their
findings to management and the Commities.

Management is responsible for the implementation of agreed recommeandations and internal
audit undertake periodic follow up reviews to ensure such recommendations have been
implemented.

The 'Audit and Risk Committee’ also advises the Corporation on the apoointment of internal
and Financial Statement auditors and their remuneration for audit and non-audit work., as well
a3 reporting annually to the Corporation,

Internal Control

Scope of Responsibility

The Carparation is ulimately responsible for the Group's system of internal eontred and for
reviewing its effectiveness. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than

eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss,

The Corporation has delegated the day to day responsibility to the Group Chief Executive

Officer, as Accounting Officer, for maintaining a sound system of intermal control that supports
the achievement of the Groups policies aims and cbjectives whilst safeguarding the public
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funds and assets for which she is personally responsible, n accordance with the
responsibilities assigned to her in the Financial Memerandum between the Group and ESFA
The Group Chief Executive Officer is also responsible for reporting to the Corporation any
material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal cantrol.

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to
sliminate al risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. |t can therefore only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal contral is
hased on an angoing process designed to identify and pricritise the risk to the ac heevement of
college policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised
and the impact should they be realised. and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
acenomically, The system of internal control has been in place in the Group for the year ended
31% July 2020 and up to the date of appraval of the Annual Report and Financial Statements.

The Risk and Control Framework

The system of internal contral is basad on a framework of regular managermeant information,
administration procedures including the segregation of duties, and a system of defegation an
accountabality. In particular, i mcludes:

» Comprehensive budgeting systems with an annual budgst, which is reviewed and
agreed by the Corporation;

» Regular reviews by the Cosporation of periodic and annuial financial reports which
indicate financial performance against forecasts]

+ Saiting targets to measure financial and other performance;

» Clearly defined capital invesiment confrol guidelines; and

» The adoption of formal project management discipines. whera appropriate.

Tha Group has an intemal awdit service, which operates in accordance with the requiremeants
of ESFA's Post 16 Audit Code of Practice. The work of the internal audit service is informed
by an analysis of the risks to which the Group is exposed, and annual internal audit plans are
based on this analysis,

The analysis of risk and the internal audit plans are endorsed by the Corporation on the
recommendation of the 'Audit and Risk Committee .

As 8 minimurm. the Head of Internal Audit annually provides the Corporation with a repart on
internal sudit activity in the Group. The report includes the Head of Internal Audit's
independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's system of risk
management, controls and governance processes

Review of Effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Group Chief Executive has responsibity for reviewing the
effectiveness of the system of intermal control. The Group Chiaf Executive's review of the
effectiveness of the systemn of internal control is informed by

« The wark of the internal auditors.
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= The work of the executive managers within the group who have responsibility for tha
development and maintenance of the internal control framework: and

= Comments made by the Group's financial statement auditors in their management
letter and other reports.

The Group Chief Executive has been advisad on the implications of the result of her review of
the effectiveness of the system of internal conirol by the 'Audit and Risk Committee’ which
oversees the work of the internal auditor and other sources of assurance, and a plan to
address weaknesses and ensure continued improvement of the system is in place.

The Group Executive Team receives reports setting out key performance and risk indicators
and considers possible control ssues brought fo thedr attention by earty warning mechanisms,
which are embedded within the Divisions and reinforced by risk awareness training. The Group
Executive Team and 'Audit and Risk Committee’ also receive regular reparts from internal
audit and other sources of assurance, which include recommendations for improvement. The
Audit and Risk Committee's' role in this area is confined to 3 high level review of the
arrangements for internal centrol The Corporation’s agenda includes a regular item for
consideration ofrisk and contral and receives reports thergon from the Group Executive Team
and the ‘Audit and Risk Committea. The emphasis is on oblaining the relevant degree of
assurance and not merely reporting by exception. At its December 2020 meeting, the
Corporation caried out the annual assessment for the year ended 31" July 2020 by
considening documentation from the Group Executive Team and internal audit, and taking
account of events since the 319 July 2020

Based on the advice of the ‘Audit and Risk Committee’ and the Group Chief Executive the
Corporation is of the opinion that the Group has an adequate and effective framework for
governance, risk management and control, and has fulfiled its statutory responsibility for ‘the
effective and efficient use of resources, the solvency of the institufion and the body and the
safequarding of their assels’”

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Corporation has reviewed the key risk to which the Group is exposed together with the
eperating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those
rsks. The Corporation is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the Group’s significant risks that has been in place for the pericd
ending the 31* July 2020 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Financial
Statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Carporation.

Impact of BREXIT

The Board has considered the ongoing impact of BREXIT and the Board are of the apinian
that even though uncertainty remains, no significant impact is expected.

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Corporation considers that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in aperational existence for the foresseable fulure.

While disruphon to operations is inevitable during the remainder of 2020 and into 2021 from

the ongaing effect of the COVID-19 pandemic, the organisation bensfits from a strong balance
sheet, low gearing and a resilient cash balance. Sufficient discretion remains availsble to
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manage investiment and operational cost cash flows to help mitigate the impact of income
shortfalls an shaort terms liguidity.

Despite the challenging environment, the risk of additional periods of lockdown and the
aseaciated risk to revenue generation, the Corporation consider that financial resources are
currently sufficient to ensure sustainability. The reasons for this confidence include:

In 2015/20 EBITDA {and therefore cash balances) was reduced by around £1.5m due
ta COVID-19. Similar sensitivity modeling was applied to the budget for 202021 and
demaonstrated that an in year operational cash surplus could still be deliverad.

The cash balance at July 2020 is at the higher end of sector benchmarks.

Core funding is likely to remain payable through periad of lockdown to enable angoing
learning for students. This represents a significant proportion of income, which
safequards the majority of core cost commitments.

The two-year cash flow forecast projects significant ongeing growth, giving material
margin for error.

Capital Expendture commitments are significant, but mostly discretionary.
Expenditure can be delayed or stopped if cash balances are diluted.

The group Balance Sheet has minimal debt, with assets available to provide as security
should bank financing support be required. Current plans do nat require borrowing, but
if financial performance were to detesiorate, it would be accessible.

Whilet commercial income is proving challenging to generate in the COVID-18
impacted environment, the organisation 15 well placed to support the need forre-skilling
due to the expected increase in rates of unemployment resulting from the pandamic
and is already accessing funding to do so

During the second national lockdown, our coliege campuses are open and learning is
being maintained, in line with government guidance.

There are no additional material liabilies for the organisation arising from the current
anvironment that are not already reflected in budgets and the Financial Statements.

For these reasens, the Corporabion continues to adept the going concern basis in preparnng
the Financial Statements.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 7 December 2020 and signed on

its bahalf by:
Sm Etu ..... ? o Rt $allg|r
Chair Group Chief Executive
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Governing Body's Statement on the Group’s Regularity, Propriety
and Compliance with Funding Body Terms and Conditions of
Funding

The Corporation has considered its responsibility to notify the Education and Skills Funding
Agency of material iregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with Education and Skills
Funding Agency terms and condstions of funding, under the financial memarandum in place
between the Corporstion and the Education and Skils Funding Agency. As part of its
corgidaration, the Corporation has had due regard to the requirements of the financial
rEmorandum,

We confirm. on behalf of the Corporation. that after due enguiry and fo the best of its
knowledge, the Corporation believes it is able to identify any material irregular or improper use
of funds by the group, or material non-compliance with the Education and Skills Funding
Agency's terms and conditions of funding under the financial memorandum.

We confirm that no instances of material iregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance

have been discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement.
these will be notified to the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

SIS bmean. i @ |y

Sue Sturgeon chlr.etts
Chair Gmup Chief Executive
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Statement of the Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation

The Members of the Corporation are required 1o present audited Financial Statements for
aach financial year.

\Within the terms and conditions of the financial memorandum betwesn the Education and
Skile Funding Agency and the Corporation, the Corporation, through its Group Chief
Executive. is required to prepare Financial Statemeants for each financial year in accordance
with the 2015 Statement of Recommended Practice-Accounting for Further and Higher
Education and with the College Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the Education and
Skils Funding Agency, and which give & true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and the result for that year.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Corporation s required to-

= Select suitable accounting poicies and apply them consistently

«  Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« State whether applicable Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the Financial Statements: and

= Prepare Financial Statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate 1o
assume that the group will continue in operation.

The Corporation is also required to prepare a report of the Goveming Body which describes
what it is trying to do and how it is going about it, including the legal and administrative status
of the Group.

The Cerperation is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with
rezsonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and which enable i to
snaure that the Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with the relevant legislation
ol ncorporation and other relevant Accounting Standards. It is responsible for taking steps
that are reasonably open to it to safeguard assets of the Group and to prevent ard detect
fraud and other iregulartes.

Tha maintenance and integrity of the Activate Learning website is the responsibilty of the
Governing Body of the Group. The work carned out by the auditors does not involve
consideration of these matters and, aceordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any
changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they wese initally presented
on the website, Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparaton and
dissamination of Financial Statements may differ from legisiation in ather junsdictions.

Members of the Corporation are responsible for ensuring that expenditure and income are
applied for the purposes intended by Parfiament and that the financial ransactions conform o
the authorities that govern them. In addition they are responsible for ensuring that funds from
the Education and Skills Funding Agency are used only in accordance with the financial
memarandum with the Education and Skills Funding Agency and any other condiions that
may be prescribed from time to time,

Members of the Carporation must ensure that there are appropriate financial and management
controls in place to safequard publc and other funds and to ensure they are used properly. In
ardition. members of the Corporation are responsible for secunng economical, efficient and
effective management of the Group's resources and expenditure 5o that the benefits that
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should be derived from the application of public funds by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency are not put at risk.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 7 December 2020 and signed on
#= behalf by

Nl
L !
....... L

Sue Sturgeon -
Chair
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Independent auditor's report to the Members of the Corporation of Activate
Learning

Opinion

We have audited the financial statemends of Activaie Leaming (the Coblege’) and its subsidianes {the
Group’) forthe year ended 31 July 2020 which comprise the Consolidated and Colege Statemant of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure, the Consolidated and College Statement of Changes in
Reserves, the Consolidated and College Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement ang
nedes 1o the financial staternents, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial
reporting framewark that has been applied in their preparation is applicable lew and United Kingdon
Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporing Standard appkcable inthe UK and

Reputrlic of Ireland” (Linited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and the 2018 Statemant
of Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education,

In pwr opinien, the financial staterments

* gwealrue and Far view of the state of the College's and Groug's alfairs as at 31 July 2020 and
of the Coliege’s and Group's sumplug of income over expendifure for the yvear then ended: and

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice,

Basis for opinion

We conducled our awdit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (LK) (IS4s {UK)) and
applicable law. Our resporsibilfies under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibiities for the sudit of the financial staterments secticn of our report. We are independent of the
Colage in ateordance with the elhical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financia!
sldements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled owr other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirernents. We belisve that the audit evidence we have
cbtained is sufficiant and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

e have nothing o report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the IS4s (LK) rag Lire
us o repor 10 yol wheare:

the Corporation’s use of the going concem basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is nol appropriate; or

* the Comporation have nol disciosed in the financial statements any identified matenal
uncerainties that may cast significant doubt abeut the College and graup ability to cantinue o
adoptthe going concem basis of accounting fora period of at least twelve months from the
date when the financial st#lements are authorised lorissue.

Other information

The Corporation are responsible for the other infarmation. The other information comprises the
nfarmation included in the annual repon. other than the financial stafements and ow auditers report
theren, Our opinéon on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, excepl B
the extent otharsse explicitly stated inour report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
themon

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility =10 read the ather information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materally incorsistant with the financial
st#Eements or our knowledge cbisined in the audit or otherwise appears {o be matenally misstated. F
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we dentify such matenal inconsistencies or apparant matena! misstatements, we are required b
deferrmine whedher here 2 a mafedal misstatenent in the financial statemems or a maleral
migssiatement of the other mformation. f, based on the work we have pedommed, we conclede that thera
is 3 matenal misgstatement of this other infermation, we are required to report that fact

Wie have nothing to report in this regard.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to repor in respect of the foBowing matters where the Post 16 Audit Code of Practice
isswed by the Education and Skills Funding Agency requires us to report to you if, in our opinion;

= adequate accounting reconds have not been kept, or retums adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visiled by us; or

* the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

*  the mformation given in the report of the Members of the: Corporation, including the operating
and financial review and sislement of corporate governance, is inconsistert with the financial

statemants; and
* we have not received all the information and explanations we requsre forouwr audit.

Responsibilities of the Corporation

Az explared more Tully in fhe Statement of Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation s out
on page 24, the Corporaticon is responsible for the preparation of the linancial stalements and for being
safisfied that they give a true and fairview, and for such mtemal control as the Corporation defermine
i necessany (o enalie the preparation of financial statements that are free from matedal misstalement,
whether due to faud or emor.

In preparing the financial statements, the Comporation i msponsible for assessing the College and
group ability to continue &8 & going concem, disclosing, as applicable, mattars related o going concem
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Comoration either intend to cease
operations, or have no realistic altemative but to do sa

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Cwr objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemenls as a whale
ara frens from material misstatement, whather due fo fraud or emar, and o issue an auditor's repart that
includes our ppinion. Reasonabke assurance (s 3 high leved of assurance, but is not & gearantes that an
audit conducied in accordance with [Sas (LK) will alweys detect a materdal misstatement when il exists,
Misstaterments can anse from fraud or emor and are considerad material if, mdividually orin aggragate,
they could reasonably be expected to infllwence the economic decisions of users taken on the base of

these financial statements

A Turther description of our responsibilities forthe audil of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website at weaw, fre.ong. ukf/audilorsresponsibilities. This description fomms
part of eur auditor's report.

Other required reporting

Opinion on other matters prescribed in the OFS Audit Code of Practice issued under the Further
and Higher Education Act 1992

It aur aginion, inall matensl respects:

= funds provided by the Oi5 and UK Research and nnovabion (ncluding Research England)
have been applied in accordance with the relevant terms and conditions alached to them. and
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»  the reguirements of OfS's accounts direction have besn met.,
Mztiers on which we are required to report by excepion

We have nothing fo report in respect of the following matters in refation to which the OfS Audd Code of
Practice requires us 10 report to you if, in our opinson’

the providers grant and fee income, as disclosed inthe notes to the financial stalements, has
peen materially misstated, o

+  the provider's expenditure on access and paricipation activities, as disclosed in the financial
atstements, has been matenally misstated

Use of the audit report

This regort is made solely to the Corporation as a body In accordance with Aricle 22 of the College’s
Alticies of Government. Qur audit work has been undertaken $o that we might state to the Corporation
{hose matters we &re required to state lo them in an auditor's repo and forno other purpose. To the
fullest extant permitied by law, we do not accep! or assume responsibility fo anyone other than the
Coliege and the Corporation as a body forour audit work, forthis report. or for the opinions we have
Foemed,

JH-L;, T
Mazars LLP
Chartered Accountants and Ststuiory Auditor

80 Victoria Street
Bristol
B31 6DP

o 7 1
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Independent Regularity Report to the corporation of Activate Learning (“the
Corporation”) and Secretary of State for Education acting through Education
and Skills Funding Agency (“"ESFA")

In excordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 28 September 2020 and further io the
requirements and conditions of funding in ESFA's grant funding agreements and contracts, or those of
any other public funder. we have camried oul an engagement to obtain limited assurance sbout whether
anylhing has come to our attention thal would suggest, in all material respects, the expendiure
disbursed and income réceived by Activate Leaming during the period 1 Augugt 2019 to 31 July 2020
have not been applied to the purposes identified by Pariament and the financial ransactions do nat
conform to the authorities which govern tham.

The framework that has been applied is set oul in the Post 16 Audit Code of Practice {tha Code")
Issued by the ESFA. In line with this framewark, our work has specifically not considered income
received from the main funding grants generated throwgh the kdividualised Leamer Record dals
retums. forwhich the ESFA has other assurance arangements in place.

This report is made solely to the corpomation of Activate Leaming and the ESFA in accordance with the
tesrns of ow engagement letter. Our work has been undenaken so that we might state to the comporation
of Activate Learming and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in & report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept, or assume. respensibility to anyone
other than the corporation of Activate Leaming and the ESFA forour work, forthis repon, ar for the
conelusion we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Activate Learning and the reporting accountant

The corporation of Activate Leaming s responsible, under the requirements of the Further & Higher
Education Act 1992, subsequent legislation and related regulations and guidance, for enguring that
expenditure disbursed and income received s applied forthe purposes infended by Partiament and the
financial transactions conform to the aulharities which govem tham,

Qur responsibilities for this engagement are established in the Urited Kingdom by our professions
ethical guidance ard are to obtain Bmited asswance and report in accordance with cur engagement
lefier and the requirements of the Code. We report to you whether amything has come o our aftention
in camying oul our work which suggests that in all materal respects, expenditure disbursed and inpome
raceived during the peniod 1 August 2019 to 31 July 2020 have not been apphed to purposes intended
by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conferm to the authorties which govemn them,

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Code issued by the ESFA, We performed a
limited assurance engagement as defired in thal framewark.

The ebjectiveof alimited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtaininformation
ared explanations in order 1o provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative
conclusion on regulanty.

A limited assurance engagement is mone limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement
and consequently does nof enable us lo obtainassurance that we would become aware of all significart
matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement, Accordingly, we do not express

a posidive apinion.

Lur engagement includes examinafion, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity of the
colege’s income and expendifure.

The work undestaken to draw to our conclusion includes:
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. Reviewed the statemert on the College's regularity, propriety and compliance with Funding
body terms and conditions of funding

«  Peviewed the College’s compleled self-assessment questionnaire on resgulanty
« Read the financial memaorandum with the ESFAI funding agreement with the ESFA.

. Tested a sample of expenditure disbursed and income recerved to consider whether they have
been applied to puwposes intended by Parfiament and in accordance with funding agresmanis

where relevant,

Reviewed all payments to senior pos! holders on termination of employment o in respect of
claime made in the year.

« Reviewed approved policies and procedures opérating dunng the year foreach funding siream
that has specific terma sitached.

+  Obtained the policy for personal gifis andior hospitaity.
+  Oibtained the register of perscnal interesis
Obtained the financial regulationsAdinancial procedures.
Obtained the College's whistleblowing policy.
Conclusion

In the course of ourwork nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all matenal respects
the expenditure disbursed and Income received during the period 1 August 2018 to 31 July 2020 has
nat been appliied to puposes intended by Parfiament and the financial fransactions do not conlem o
the guthorities which govem tham.

Signed: M'IJ )

Mazars LLP

pate: ) 3) /71
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Restated Restated

Motes  Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July
2020 2020 2019 2018
Group  College Group  College

£'000 £'000 £' 00D £'000
INCOME
Funding body grants 3 8,670 72 286 68,230 62 520
Tuitisn fees and education contracts 4 8.031 9,947 G.396 7850
Ciher grants and contracts & 400 400 400 400
Ciher income 7] 387359 14,848 11,375 11,443
Invastment moome i - 5 5 41
Total income 125 840 57347 86,406 az.orz2
EXPENOITURE
Staff cosls a 73,773 57,7 45 289 42 278
Fundamental restruciuring costs ] T2 To2 574 G54
Other operating expenses 10 32,739 29.454 20,818 23.148
Depracatan 13 T.565 7,185 6,084 B.OM
Interest and ather inance costs 11 1,807 1,606 1,054 1,853
Total expenditure 116,386 96,718 74,834 73,952
Surplus before other gains and losses 8,454 589 11,572 8,080
Loss on disposal of assels (328) s -
‘Share of operating surplus ! [loss) in associales 14 {2470 - 218

Acguired subsidiary assats 27 {1,266) % . E
Gift of acquired colleges assets & liabilities . Z 41 g7a 41 679

Surplus befors tax 5 188 270 53,465 49,759
Taation 12 2136 - -
Surplus for the year 3,263 270 53,469 48,758

Actuarial loss in respect of pension schemes 23 (23.981)  (23.981) (8.875) 18.875)
Investment property revaleation - . 3 :

Total comprehensive income for the year (20,728) (Z3,T11) 44,504 40,584

The income and expenditure account i in respact of confinuing aclivities.

an
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Consolidated and College Statement of Changes in Reserves

income and Revaluation Total
Expenditure Roserve
Account
£°000 E'0DD E"000
Group
Balance at 315t July 2018 {proviously reported) 19,481) 12,135 2,654
Correction of priar year error (Note 28) 13,581 13,581
Balance at Hst July 2098 (re-stated) 4,100 12,135 16,236
Surplus fram the income and expendifure account 53469 - 53,468
Dther comprehensiye incaome (8.5873) . (B,ATS)
Transfers between ravaluation & income and éxpendiure resenes 170 (170 ;
Total comprehensive income for the 2016M8 Year 44,764 1170} 24,504
Balance at 31st July 2019 {previously reported) 33,817 11,965 45,782
Caorrection of prioe year ermor (Mote 25) 15,047 - 15,047
Balance at 31st July 2018 {re-stated) 48,864 11,965 60,829
Surplus from the ncome and expendibure 3coount 3263 - 3253
Dither comprahensive neoms [23,881) . [(Z3.981)
Transfers batween revaluation & incarme and expenditure resenves 170 (170) -
Tetal comprehensive income for the 2019/20 Year (20,558) 1170) 120,728)
Balance at 315t July 2020 E«E.EDE_ 11,795 401
College
Balance at 315t July 2048 (previously reported) (8,128} 12,135 4,007
Conection of priar year ermor (Note 25) 13,581 13,581
Balance al 31st July 2018 (re-stated) 5,453 12,135 17,588
Surplus from the income and expendiure account 449,759 . 49,759
Ciher comprehanaive income (B8.673) - (B.BTE)
Transfers tetween revaluation & income and expenditure reserdes 170 (170 =
Total comprehensive income for the 2018118 Year 41,054 {170) 40,884
Balance at 31st July 2019 (previously reported) 31,460 11,965 43,425
Correction of prior year ermor (Note 29) 15,047 - 15047
Balance at 315t July 2018 [re-stated) 46, 507 11,865 68,472
Surplus from the income and expenditure account 270 - 270
Other comprehensig iNCome (23,881) d (23,981}
Transfers between revaluation & income and expenditung resenies 170 (1700 -
Total comprehensive income for the 2019720 Year [23,541) (170} (23,711}
Ealance at 315t July 2020 22,966 11,795 34,761
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 July 2020
Restated Restated

Motes Group  College Group College
2020 2020 2019 2019
£'000 £'000 £'000 £"000
Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets 12 154,550 154,520 160,268 160,289
Invesiments 14 3,405 3485 5,223 3,495
158,045 158,015 165,512 162,784
Current assets
Stocks 15 &4 24 ar Go
Trade and other receivables 16 19,072 g 891 8225 84070
Cash and cash equivalents el 15,182 10,406 6,008 5,922
~ 34,328 20,431 15,320 14,061
2 Credi - ithi
:::': reditors — amounts falling due within one 17 (16,144) (7.557) (11293)  (10.863)
Met current assets 18,184 12,874 4,027 3,398
Total assets less current labilitios 176,229 170,889 168,539 167 162
- Creditors — f after
uhes: Cvadilors —amounis feling dun aferoneyemr oy apon  see j (40,862)  (40,862)
Net assets before provisions 137,608 132,268 128677 126,320
Provisions
Cither pravigions 20 (1,088) (1.088) (353 {953
Defined benefit obligations 23 (96,4 19) (86 419) (65, B85) (65, a95)
Total net assets 40,11 34,761 B0,B25 58 472
L =1
Unrestricted riserves
income and expendibure scoount 28 205 22 9e8 45 854 45 /07
Revaluation resaerne 11,7495 11,795 1,855 11.965
Total unrestricted reserves 40101 34,781 &l 825 58,472
— -

The financial statements on pages 31 to 64 were approved and authorised for ssue by the Corporation an 7th
December 2020 and were sjyned on its behalf on that date by
fl
i

Sally Dicketts, Group Chief E

=
r"“lL.l o B N
S e R el | i

pme Pibadd ---'!.I.:.......n'-un.aal.
Sue Sturgean, Chalr :
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Cash inflow from operating activities
Surplus for the year

Adjustment for non cash items
Depraciaton

Gift of scquired assets & habilies

Share of pperating loss /| {profity of associale
Deferred capital grants refeased to income
Conditional grant released to income

FRS 102 (2B} pengion charge

Diecraasa in ook

Increase n debtors

Decreage in creditors

increses §idecramse) m provisions

Adjuatment for investing or financing activities
Imerast recanable

Intarast payable

Loss on sale of fed assels

Mat cash outflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Sale of Assels

Cash Acquired from Mew Subsidiary
Irterest recaived

Purchase of tangibie fixed assats
Deferrad capital grants received

Met cash Inflow | [outflow) from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repaymant of finance leases

Interest paid

ESF& Granl received

ESF Loan receined

Repaymend of bank loans

Mot cash inflow from financing activities

Increase in cash and cash eguivalents in the year

Cash ard eaih equivalenis a8 begmning of the vear

Cash and cash eguvalenis at end of the year

Activite Lesming

Arrual Rapon ard Financal Statemenis
Fewe tFea yaar ended 37 July 2020

Restated

MHoles 2020 2019
E£'000 £000

3,253 53,468

13 T.5G5 &,084
27 1.266 (41.572)
14 2470 [218)
JES (2,163 {1,133)
3 (10,367T) (16,628}
11 &23 &G04 4410
15 23 10
16 (7238} [908)
17.18 (8. 400) {3,544
L Th (B8]
19,180) 153,953}

7 . (51
1 oy 338
A28 -

[5,510) {150)

1,890 -

6168 -

- A

13 (3,740 (2,.813)
543 241

4. BE1 [2,26T)

(621 {114}

11 {87 {338}
g.aa92 11,568

19 - 4 G55
(9, 193)

8.E13 6,698
3 ]

9,184 4180

21 &, 008 1.B28
21 15,192 6,008
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Notes to the Accounts {forming part of the financial statements)
1 Ganeral Information

Thase Financial Statements compriging the Consclidated Statements of Comprehensive Income,
Consolidated and College Staternent of Changes in Reserves, Statement of Financial Position,
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the related noles (numbered 1 to 29) constitute the
consolidated Financial Statements of Aclivate Learning for the financial year snded 31 July 2020.

Actvate Learning is an exempl charity under Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011 and is regulated by the
Secretary of State for Education as Principal Regutator for all Further Education Corporations in
England. The nature of the company’s eperations and s principal activities are set out in the Report of
tha Gowverning Body at page 2.

The Financial Statements have been presented in Pounds Sterfing as this is the functional currency of
the Group and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (E000) except when otherwise
indicated.

Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordancs with FRS 102 *The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (FRS 102).

2 Aceounting Policles
Basis of Accounting

The Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention as modified
by the use of previous valuations as deemed cost at fransidion for certain non-curment asseis,

Basis of Preparation

These Financial Stalemenis have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended
Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2019 (the 2019 FE HE SORP), the College
Accounts Direction for 2018 to 2020 and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 — “The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of freland” (FRS 102). The
Corporation iz a public benefit entity and has therefore applied the relevant public benafit requirements
of FRS 102.

The preparation of Financial Statements in compliance with FRS 102 reguires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates, It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the Group's
accounting policies,

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated Financial Statements include the College and its subsidiaries, Activate Enterprise
Limited, Activate Learning Investments Limited, The Oxford Partinership LLC, Merrist Wood Enterprises
Limited [dormant}, controfled by the Group. Control is achieved where the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefils from ils activities. The
results of subsidiaries acquired or dsposed of during the period are included in the consalidated income
and expenditure account from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal

Infra group sales and profits are eliminated fully on consolidation. All Financial Statemenis are made

up to 31 July 2020. The Oxford Partnership statutory year end is 31% December 2019, Non-statutory
accounts were made up 1o 31 July 2020 and consolidated into the Group Accounts.
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Motes to the Accounts (continued)
2. Accounting policies (confinued)

Going Concern

The activities of the Group. together with the faclors likely to affect its future development and
perfamance are set out in the Members Report. The financial position of the Group, s cash-flow,
liquidty and borrowings are presented in the Financial Statements and accompanying Motes,

The Group currently has £4.7m loans outstanding with the Department of Education. The repayment of
this lean is not due to begin until July 2027,

The Group's forecasts and financial projections indicate that it will be able to ocperate without the nead
for any short term financing requirements. This forecast takes inte account the significant impact that
tha COVID-19 pandemic has had on cash balances and accounting surplus for the year ended 317 July
020 and uncertainty over the ongoeng impact into future years. Forward projections have been tested
with scanarios for further pariods of inckdown that would materially impact income generating activity,
but cash balkances are demonstrated 1o remain sufficiently resibent,

Accodingly the Group has a reascnable expectation that i@ has adeguate resources lo continue in
opergtional existence for the foresesable future, and for this reason will continua o adopt the going
concern basis in the preparation of ds Financial Statements

Recognition of Income

Govarmment revenue grants include funding body recurrent grants and other grants and are accounted
for usder the accryal moded as permitted by FRS 102. Funding body recurrent grants are measured in
ling with best estimates for the period of what is receivable and depend on the particulsr income siream
irvaivad,

Any under er over achisvement for the Adult Skills Budget is adjusted for and reflected in the level of
recurrent grant recognised in the income and expenditure account. The final grant income is normally
detarmined with the conclusian of the year end reconciliation process with the funding body following
the year end, and the results of any funding audits. 168-15 learner responsna funding s not normally
subject to reconciliation and is therefore not subject to contract adjustmeants.

The recusrent grant from OF S represents the funding allocations atiributable to the current financial year
and 5 eredited direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Grarts {including research grants) from nen-government sources are recognised in incomea when the
Caollege is entited to the income and performance related conddions have been met. Income received
in afvance of performance related conditions being met is recognised as deferred income within
cradiors on the balance sheet and released to income as the conditions ara met.

Governmant capital grants are capitalised, held as deferred income and recognised in income cver the
axpected useful Iife of the assel, undes the accrual methed as permitted by FRS 102 Other capital
grants are récognised in income when the College is entitled to the funds subject 1o any performance
related conditions being met.

Government merger grants are racegnised in income based on utlisation of the granl per the funding
agrasmant

Incame from tuition fees is stated gross of any expenditure which i not a discount and 18 recognised in
the pariod for which i is receved.

Oither income is credded to the income and expenditure account in the period in which it is earned on &
rescenable basis,

All income from short term deposits is credited to the Income and expenditure account in the period in
which if i3 earned on a receivable basis.
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Motes to the Accounts (continued)
2. Accounting policies (continued)

Accounting for Post-Employment Benefits

Post-employrnent benefits to employees of the Group are principally provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme (TPS) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). These are defined benefit plans,
which are externally funded and contracted out of the State Second Pension

The TPS is an unfunded scheme Contributions to the TPS are calculated so as 1o spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ waorking lives with the College in such a way thal the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of curent and future pensionable payroll The contributions &re
determined by qualified actuaries on the basis of valuations using a prospective benefit method. The
TPS is a multi- employer scheme and the Group is unable io identify its share of the underlying assets
and labilities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis. The TPS is therefore treated as
defined contribution plan and the contributions recognised as an expense in the income statement in
the pericds during which services are rendered by employees

The LGPS is a funded scheme, The assets of the LGPS are measured using closing fair values. LGPS
ligbilities are maasured using the projected unit credit method and discounted at the current rate of
return on a high guality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The sctearial
valuations are oblained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts
charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the eosts of scheme intreductions, benafit
changes, seftlements and curtailments. They are included a8 part of staff costs a3 incurred. Nat interast
on the net defined benafit liability/asset & also recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and comprises the interest cost on the defined banefit obligation and interest income an e scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets af the beginning of the pericd by
the rate used o discount the banefit obligations.

The difference between the interest income on the scheme Bssels and the actual returm on the schame
assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gams and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses
Short Tarm Employment Benefits

Short term employment benefite such as salaries and compensated absences tholiday pay) are
recognised as an expansa in the year in which the employees render service to the College, Any unused
benefits are accrued and measured a3 the additional amount the Group expects to pay a5 a result of
the unused entitlemeant

Enhanced Pensions

The actual cost of any enhanced ongeing pension to a former member of staff is paid by a college
annually. An estimate of the expected future cost of any enhancement to the ongoing pension of a
former member of staff is charged in full 1o the Group's income in the year that the member of siaf
relires. In subsequen years a charge is made te provisions in the balance sheet using the enhanced
pension spreadsheet provided by the funding bodies.

Mon-Current Assets - Tangible Fixed Assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impalmnent
lossas.

Cartain items of fixed assets that had been revalued to fair value on or prior to the date of transition to
the 2015 FE HE SORP. are measured on the basis of deemed cost, being the revalued amount at the
daie of that revaluatan,

v
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)
2. Accounting policies {continued)

Lamd and buidings
Freshald buitdings are depreciated on a siraight line basls over their expeied useful lives as follows:

« 50 years
s Refurbishmens - vseful economic life

Freehald land is not depreciated, Freehold buildings are depreciated over iheir expected useful
acomams: life to the Group

Whers land and buildings are acquired with the aid of specific grants, they are capitalised and
depreciated as above. The related grants are credited 1o a deferred income account within credilors,
and are releaszed to the income and expendifure account over the expected useful economic life of the
ralated assel on 8 systematic basis consistent with the depreciation policy. The defarred income i
allocated between credifors due within one year and those due after more than one year

A review for impairment of a fixed asset i carried out if evenls or changes in cicumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of any fiked asset may not be recoverable

On adoption of FRS 102, the Group followed the transitional provision to retain the book value of land
and buildings, which were revalued in 1095, as deemed cost but not to adopt a policy of revaluations of
these properties in the future.

Assels under conztruchian
Assets under construction ane accounted for at cost, based on the value of architects cenificates and
ather dirael costs. incurred ta 31 July 2020, They are not depreciated until they are brought into use

Suhsegient expendilure on existing fixed assels

Where significant expenditure is incurred on tangible fixad assels after initial purchase i & charged 1o
incame in the pericd it is Ineurred, unless it Increases the lulure benefits o the Group, inwhich case it
is capitalised and depreciated on the relevant basis.

Ecpnguraew
Equipment costing less than £1,000 per individual tem 15 recognsed as expenditure in the period of
acquisitian. All other equipment is capitalised al cost,

Capitalised equipment is depreciated on a straight line basis over 1s remaining useful economic life as
foliows:

General equipment & years

Matar vehicles & years

Computer eguipmen 3 years
Furniture, fixtures and fitings 5 years

Bomowing Costs
Bomuwing costs are recognised as expenditure in the period in which they are incurrad.
Laased Assels

Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a siraight line basis over the lease term. Any lease
premiums or incentives relating to leases signed after 1st Augusl 2014 are spread over the minimum
leasa tarm, The Group has taken advantage of the ransitional exemptions in FRS 102 and has retained
the pelicy of spreading lease premiums and incentives to the date of the firsl market rent raview for
leeses signed before 1st August 2014

Leasing agreements which transfer to the Group substantially all the benefits and risks of cwnership of
an asset are ireated as finance leases.
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Motes to the Accounts (continuved)
2. Accounting policies {continued)

Assels held under finance lsases are racognised initially at the fair value of the leased assat (or, f lower,
the present value of minimum laase payments} at the inceplion of the lease. The corresponding liability
to the lessor i included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Assets held under finance
leases are included in tangible fixed asssts and depreciated and assessed for impairment losses in the
EEME way 85 owned assels

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding lability. The finance charges are allocated over the peried of the l=ase in proportion 1o the
capital element outstanding.

Investment Properies

Where the Group renls out propary. these properfies are treated as mixed use properties with the
alement of the properly rented out being treated as an investment property and carried at fair value
{merket valee) rather than cost.

Investments

Invesiments in suhsitianes
Investmants in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less mpairment in the individual Financial Statements

invesimants 1 agsocaies

Invesiments in associates are recognised initially in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position at
the transaction price and subsequently adjusted to reflect the Group's share of total comprehensive
incaome end equity of the associate, less any impairment. Any excess of the cost of acguisition over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets liabilities and confingent fiabilities of the
associate recognised at the dale of acquisition, although treated as goodwill, is prasented as part of the
investment in the associate. Amortisation is charged so as lo allocate the cost of goodwill over its
estimated useful life, using the straight line method. Losses in excess of the carsrying amount of an
investment in an associate are recorded as a provision only when the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or has made payments on behalf of the associate

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of their cost and net realisable value, beng selling price less cosls
to complete and sell Where necessary, provision is made for obsolete, slow moving and defective
itms.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts. Deposits are repaysble on
demand if they are in practice avaikable within 24 hours without penalty,

Cash eguivalents are shorl term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash with insigndficant risk of change in value. An investment qualifies as a cash equivaleni when it
has maturity of 3 months or less from the date of acquisition

Financial Liabilities and Equity

Financial liabilities and equily are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument's
contractual obligations, rather than the financial instrument's legal form.

All loans, investmenis and short term deposits held by the Group are classified as basic financial
instruments in accordance with FRS 102. These inatrumenis are iniially recorded at the transaction
price less any transaction costs (historical cost). FRS 102 requires that basic financial instruments are
subsaguently measured al amortised cost, however the Group has calculated that the difference between
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Motes to the Accounts (continued)
2. Accounting policies (continued)

the historical cost and amortised cost basis is nol material and so these financial instruments are stated
an 1he batance sheet at historical cost. Loans and investments that are payable or receivable within one
year are not discounked.

Faoreign Currency Transkation

Transaclions denominated n fereign currencies are recorded wsing the rate of exchange ruling at the
date of the ransaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign curmencies are translated
at the rates of exchange ruling at the end of the financial period with all resulting exchange differences
being taken o incoma in the periad in which they arse

Tawation

The Corporation s considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule § Finance Act 2010
and erefore it meets the definiion of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the Corporalion i polentially exempt from taxation in respact of income or capifal gains
recehved within catagories covered by Sections 478-488 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Sechion 256
af the Taxation of Chargeable Gaing Act 1982, to the extent that such income ar gains ara applied
exclsively to chantable purposes

The Corporation is partially exermpt in respect of Value Added Tax, so that it can only recover 1% aof the:
WAT charged on its inpuis. Irecoverable VAT on inputs is included in the costs afl such inputs and added
to the cost of tangible fixed assels as appropriate, where the inputs themselves are tangible fived assels
by nature.

The subsidiary companies are subject to corporation tax and VAT in the same way as any cormrmcial
organisation. The Oxford Partnership is also subject to Withholding Tax (WHT) for payments made
internationaliy.

Provilons and Contingent Liabilities

Provigions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or consiruchive chligation as a result of
a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required 1o seitle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

Whsre the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expecled o be required to seitie
the abligalion is recognised at present value using a pre-lax discount rate. The unwinding of the discounl
s recognised as a finance cost in the statement of comprehensive income n the pericd it arizes

A contingent liability arises from a past event that gives the Group a possible obligation whose existence
will oaly be confirmed by the eccurrence or otherwise of uncertain future svents nol whally within tha
contrel of the Group. Contingent lkabilities also arise in crcumstances whane a provision would otherwise
be made but either ifis nat probabie that an outflow of resources will ba required or the amount of the
abkgation cannot be measured reliably

Corfingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance gheset but are disclosed in the notes bo the
Financial Statements.

Agency Arrangements

The Group acts @8 an agent in the collection and payment of discretionary support funds and related
paymants received from the funding bodies and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from
the meome and expenditura of the College where the Group & exposed to minimal rsk or enjpoys minmal
poonomic benefit related to the transaction.
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)
2. Accounting pohicies (continued)

In preparing these Financial Statements, management have made the following judgements:

Determination as 1o whether there are indicators of impairment of the Group's tangible assets,
including geodwill Factors taken into consideration in reaching such a decision include the
economic viabiliy and expected future financial performance of the assel and where it is 2
companent of a larger cash generating unit, the viabildy and expected future performance of
that unit,

Careful consideration has baen given to which antitias the Corparatsan has control over and the
appropriate decision made as o whether 1o consalidate or not;

The Aclivate Learning Group umbrella includes a multi academy trust, the Group has judged
that it does not have control of the frust $o as o obtain benefs from their activities. Therefors
the Group does ned consclidate therm into s Financial Statement.

Other key sources of estimation uncertainty:

Tangible Fixed Asseis

Tangible fed assets. other than investiment properties, are depreciated over their useful lives
taking into account residual values, whera appropriste, The actual lives of the assels and residual
values are assessed annualy and may vary depending on a number of factors, In fE-ass|ssing
assel Ives, faciors such as technological innovation and mainienance programimes are taken into
accounl Residual value sssessments consider issues such as future marked conditions, the
remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values.

Local Governmeni Pension Scheme

The: present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on
a number of factors that are determined on an aclearial basis using a varlety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost {incorme) for pansions include the discount rate, Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 23, will impaet the carrying amount of
the pension lability. Furthermare a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full
actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary i valuing the
pensions liabity at 31 July 2020

Any differences between the figures derived from the redl forward approach and a full actuarial
valisation would impact on the carrying amount of the pensicn Bability.

Provision for Bad Debt

Provision for bad debt has been made at a level considered prudent in the light of past experience.

41




Notes to the Accounts (continued)

3 Funding body grants

Recurrent grants

Education and Skills Funding Agency - adult

Education end Skills Funding Agency — 16 -18
Education end Skills Funding Agency - appranticéships
Highes Education Funding Councll / OFS

Specific grants

Releases of government capital grants

Transaction Linit grant funding

Mher Grants

Toial

4  Tultiea fees and education contracts

Byt education fees
Bppranticeship fees and contracts
Feas for FE loan supported courses
infermational studenls fees

Total tuition fees

Education contracts

Total

6 Othar grants and contracts

Release of Other Government Capital Grants

Tatal

Achvie Lesming

Armisal Femard and Financial Skilemanis

Year ended 31 July

For fhe year ended 31 Juty 2020

Year ended 31 July

2020 2020 2019 2018
Group College Group College
£'000 £°000 E'D00 E£°000
6,742 6,740 §.459 5,418
43,6368 43638 35,415 J5415
6,220 - 5,314 .
1.201 1,201 aa7 470
1.763 1.763 733 Tax
10,387 10,387 18,628 16,524
8718 8,567 3,864 3.B54
TB.ETD 71,236 68,230 62,529

Year ended 31 July

Year endad 31 July

2020 2020 2019 2018
Group Callege Group College
E'000 £'000 E'0D0 E'D00
4,780 4 643 3453 3465
178 10 123 -
1,607 1,581 1,145 1,138
1,042 1.042 759 TA7
7615 7,286 5483 5.400
418 2 BE1 813 2254
8,031 8,947 L] 7 659

Year ended 31 July

Year ended 31 July

2020 2020 2019 2019
Group College Group College
E'000 E'000 £°000 £° 000
A0 400 400 400

_ 300 400 400 400
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

&  Other income

Catering and residances

Other income generating activities
The Oxford Parnership
Miscellansous income

Total

T Investment income

Group interest receivabie
Other interest receivable

Total

43

Activate Laamng
Arrial Repor! 2nd Firmnciad Sialametls
Fior the year ended 31 July 2020

Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July
2020 2020 9 209
Group  College Group  College
£'000 £°000 £'000 E'000
2.547 2547 G52 g52
3816 11,938 10,312 10 386
32,213 = = -
163 163 111 105
8,739 14,648 1,378 11,443
Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July
2020 2020 2018 2018
Group  College Group College
E'0D0 E'DOD £'000 £'000

- K - i

. - 5 5
—E 5 41
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

8 Staffcosts - Group

The averaga number of persons (including key management personnel) employed by the Group during the year,
described as full-time agunatents., was:

2000 20148

[ Ma.

Teaching shaff 703 316
Mon teaching staff 1,018 B59
1,722 a7rs

=_:!|:ln==—=

The average number of persons (including key managemen! personnel) amployed by the Group during the year
wag:

2020 2019

Ho. Mo

Teaching staff HOE 303
Man teaching staff 1,404 799

Ean 1I1EI

Staff costs for the above persons Restated
2020 2019
E'000 £'000
Wages and salaries 55,783 3z2.076
Social security ©osts 3,832 2.881
Other pension coats (includes FRS102 (28) adjustments of £4, 162,000, 2018 12,382 8281
E3 408 000
Payroll sub total T1.997 43,218
Conractsd oul stafiing services 1,776 2.071
Gtaff costs 73,773 45,289



Aciiale Laaming
Annual Reeper and Financial Sialamants
For tha year endad 37 July 2020

Notes to the Accounts (continued)

8 5taff costs - Group [continuad)

Key management personnel

Key management personmel are thoge persons having authorty and responsibility for planning, directing and
controfiing the activities of the Group and are represented by the Group Executive Team which comprisas of the

Growp Chief Executive, Deputy Group Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer and five indwiduals with the dille
Group Executive Director,

Emoluments of key management perscnnel, Group Chief Executive and other higher paid staff

2020 219
Mo,
The number of key management persennel including the Group Chief Executive: a a8

The number of key management personnel and other stalf who received emoluments, excluding pension
contributions bt including benefits in kind, in the folowing ranges was

2020 2020 2018 2019
Koy Othar Stalf Koy Dthar Siaf¥
fanagemarnt Managemanit
Parscanal Farsonna|

E60,001 to £65,000 G g
EB5,001 to £70,000 4 2
ET0,001 o £75,000 4 3
ET5.001 1o 80,000 3 1
EBO.001 to £85,000 .
£E5.001 to £90,000 i
£90,001 to £35 000 1 1
E95,001 to £100,000 i i

£105,001 ta £110,000
£110,007 to £115.000
£115.007 fo £1.20,000 2 1 1
£120,001 to £125,000 3

£125,001 to £130,000

£130,001 to £135,000 1
E165,001 to £170,000 1 1

E170,001 to £175.000

£190,001 to £195,000 1 1 1

Other Staff for 2020 includes The Oxford Parinership personnel, with emaluments transisted at an exchange rateof
£1: SAR 5. Exchange rate fluctuations since salaries were sed will impact comparability
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Motes to the Accounts (continued)

B Staff costs - Group (continued)

Key management personnal émaluments are made up as follows:

2020 2019

E'000 £1000

Salaries 1.004 074
Performance related bonuses i} B8
Benafits in kind 24 20
1.103 1,063

Pension cornbubons 152 136
Taotal emakiments 1,255 1,194

There were no amounts due to key management personnal that were waived in ihe year, nor any salary sacrifice
arrangements in place Inclsded in the abeve are bonuses linked to delivery of key strategic objectives of the
Group, Reward for Key Management Personnel {including asgessment of peformance related bonuses) is set by
the Remuneraticn Committes, a sub-cammites of the Corporaton board.

The above emoluments include amounts payable to the Group Chief Execulve {who iz also the highesl post
holdar) of

F020 20149

£°000 £

Sakares 165 165
Pedomnance ralabéd bonuses 2d 17
Benefits in king B ]
184 181
] — ]

Pension contribuions 16 18
| P

The Group Chisf Executive's basic salary divided by the median pay of all other Corporation empéovees & Chief
Executive’s tofal emoluments divided by the median pay of all other Corporation Employees was £9 and B.7
respactively. This only includes empioyees of Activate Leaming and excludes contractors & agency staff

%  Fundamental restructuring cosis

2020 2019
E'000 E'000
Exceptional staff restructuring (coniractual) T02 574
702 &74
]

All amounts ralating 1o restructuring cosis are due to the Corporation approved mergers of Guildiord College Grop
& Bracknell & Wokingham College. In aggregate, £53,000 was paid in respect of two indhiduals whose annual
salary was £60.000 or above. These were no additional non-cash benefits provided.
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

10 Other operating expenses

Teaching costs

Mon taaching costs

Premises costs

Impairment of financial asseds

Tha amount of steck recogrised 25 an expense

Total
Other operating expenses include:
Audiors” remuneration;

Financial stalements audit*
Intermal audit™

Other services provided by the financial statements auditors

© Includes £28 500 in respect of the College (2018/19 £40,350)

Access & Participation Spending

Aclivale Leamng
Anruial Repon and Firsnoa Siaienenis
Foef [ year ended 31 July 2020

Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July
2020 2020 2018 g
Group  College Group  College
£'000 E'000 E'000 £100a
8,964 7,493 10,000 5791
14,753 14,108 8,214 8590
8,564 7612 4154 4175
i44 240 398 4482
108 = 154 -
42,738 29 i"ﬂINE EE!HI
2020 2019

£'000 £000

B0 45

o7 48

3 =

L 1

™ all in respect of the College

The accounts include the following spend on Access & Partcipation for HE students, a new requerament in 2020

Access Investment
Financial Support to Students
Fesearch 8 Evaluation

Total

11 Interest payahle

Om bank loans, overdrafls and other loans:
Bank charges
Mel interest on defined pension Eability (note 23)

Total

12 Group taxation

Total

27

48

32

W
Restated
2020 2118
£'000 £000
a7 138
gy 36
&8 Eid
1,442 1.002
1,807 1.954
2029 2019
E70D0 E000
2,136 -

The College was not liable for any corporation tax arising out of its activities during either penad. The Growp taxation
felates to Withholding Tax and Corporation Tax eosts of The Oxford Partnership operating in Saudi Arabia. By
dividends received from The Ouxdord Partnership are subject to Withholding Tax, in fine with Saudi Arabian legislation.
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

13 Tangible fixed assels |Group)

Cost or valuation
At 1 August 2018
hoguirad at Acguisition (Mot 27)
Recasshcation
Adidsbons
Dispasals

At 31 July 2020
Depreciation
At 1 hugust 2018
Acouesd al Acquisition (Mate 27)

Chargs for the year
Dispasals

At 3 July 2020

Mot Boak value at 31 July 2020

Met book value a8 31 July 2018

Acireabs LeAming
Annunl Reporl and Firsancsd Stalemenls
For the year ended 31 July 2020

Land and Egquipment Asszets in the Total
buildings Course of
Construction
Freehold
£00 £°0on £'000 £100
160,082 30,8493 - 190, 975
- 3,445 31 3480
(395) 305 - -
B30 2,620 a0 3,740
[3.020]) - . {3,025
157 488 37,257 421 195,166
15478 15,207 - 30,585
. AATT : 3177
40487 347B . 7,565
(8113 - : (811
18,754 21,862 - 40 616
138,734 15,395 41 154,550
14 504 1&5&6 - 160 2839
— T




Notes to the Accounts (continued)

13 Tangible fixed assels (College only)

Cast or valuation

At 1 Augest 2019
Reclassification
Addgions

Disposals
At 31 July 2020

Depreciation

Af 1 August 2009
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 July 2020

Met book value at 31 July 2020

Met book valus at 31 July 2019

Activale Leaming

Armial Repodt snd Francial Siatements
Fiasr L= year mndend 39 July 2020

Land and Equipment Assets in the Tuotal
buildings Course of
Construction
Freehaold
E£'000 £'000 E'000 E£'000
180,082 30,893 194,975
[385) 385 - -
aip 2413 380 3633
{3,029) - - (3,028)
157,488 33,701 390 181,579
15,478 15,207 30,685
4, 08T 3,088 7,185
[B11}) 2 (B11)
18,754 18,305 - 37,055
138,724 15,308 380 15-4|$ﬂ1:|
144 804 — 15,686 1EE'|2EIE

40




Activale Learring
annual Repat and Firancial Siatements
For the yesar anded 51 July 2000

Notes to the Accounts (continued)

13 Tanglble fixed assets (College only) (continued)

The transtonal rules set out in FRS 102 Tamgible Fixed Assets have been applied. Accordingly the book values at
implemertation have been retained

Land and buidings were valued by the three former collages for the purposs af the 1994 fnancial slaterments al
depreciated replacement cost by a firm ef independent charered suneeyors, in accordance with the RICS
Slatement of Assel Valuation Practice and Guidance notes. Other tangible fixed assets inherited from the local
education autharnly at incorporation have been valued by the Corporation on a depreciated replacerment cost basis
with the assistance of independent professional adwice

Land and buildings with a net book value of £9,383 000 (2018 £9 533.000) have been fmanced from exchequer
tunds Should these assets be sold, the Group may be liable, under the terms of the financkal memorandum with
the ESFA to surrender the procesds. The Group may akso be liable under the terms of the Transachon Linit's
suppart to surrendes future proceeds from sales of Guildford College properties

14 MWon current investments

Group Investmant  Investment in Other fixed asset Tatal
properties associate investments

E"D0D E"000 £1000 ED0d

Cost or valiation brought forward 3,445 1.728 50 5,223

Bdeitions - ; 3 ¥

Share of zssociate’s deficit for the year . (2470} - (2.470)

Acquistion of remaining sharehalding 742 742

Total 3,-“5_ o &0 llﬁﬂ-ﬁ

College Investment Invesiment in Other fixed assel Total
propertits associale investments

£'000 E£'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or valuation brought foreard 34448 - &0 3405

Agditions - ’ i :

Total 3,445 = &0 3,495

The Invesiment properies which have had valustions are The Innovation Cenlre in Banbury, the Jericho Building
in Owford and the Eagle Radio Building in Guildford. The Innovation cendre valuabon was basad on an independeant
waluation of the property. The Jericho Building valuation was based on an independent view of market rantal rates
and yields, The Eagle Radio Building valuation s as assessed al the point of merger.

The Comoration owns 100 per cent of the isseed Ordinary A shares of Activate Enterprise Limited, a comparny
incorparated in England & Wales . The principal business aclivity of Activate Enterprise Limited is providing
{raining, consulting and apprenticeships, The initial cost for this investment was E17h

The Group increased its ownership from 37% to 100% of The Oxford Partnership LLC, a company incorporated n
Saudi Arshia on 14th September 2018, Therefore the Joint Venture Associaté value B now removed, as full
subsidiary accounting has been applied. The initial cost of shares was £31,588 The invesiment is held by Activate
Learning Investment Limitad, a comnpany limited by gurantee which is incorparated in England & Wales and which
is conbroded by Activate Leaming,

L1F]
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

14 Non current investments (continued)

The Group owns 5 per cent of 1885 Comhill Ltd, a company incorporated in United Kingdom, The initial cost of
which was £30,000. The principal activity is the sale of food & beverage products, The investment & held by
Activate Learning. The invesiment is not listed and is hald at cost less mpairment a5 fair value cannot be reliably
determined.

16 Stock
Group Group
2020 29
E'000 £'000
Equine siocks = 0
il =] L]
Insighis unds a0 iB
Tatal 64 £
—

There is na significant difference between Ihe replacemant cost of the inventory and its carrying amount
Stocks are stated after provisions for imparment of Enil (2018 £nil)

College
The College had stocks of £33,669 at 31 July 2020 (2019 £69,422).
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

Activirle Leaming

armidal Hepard and Financial Stalemenls
For the year ended 31 Juy 2020

16 Debtors
Eroup College Group College
2020 2020 2019 2018
E"DOD £'0040 £'000 E000
Armounts falling due within one year:
Trade recanzbles TG 432 1,743 1.2B8
Amcunts owed by group undertakings
Subsidiary undertakings - 7.827 - .
Aseociale undertakings - - 5,000 5,000
Prepayments and accrued income 18,036 1,457 2281 1,501
Cithwer geabbars 2E0 225 161 181
Tatal 19@;2 9!991 5!!25 B!ﬂTﬂ
17 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Group College Group College
FLIFLH 2000 2019 2015
£'000 £'000 E" 000 £'000
Oher payments recaived in advance 134 L] 33 =
Trade payables a4 a14 1,581 1,620
Cithaer baxation and social secury 2.142 1, 585 2444 2326
Corporaton & Witkholding Tax 6,756 . : .
dccruals and deferred incorme 3,934 2405 2 o4 24493
Deferred ingome - government capital grants 2168 2. 168 2168 2164
Finance Laassas 4 45 af Bl
Amounts owed to the ESEA - - 2.043 2,043
Total 16,144 1,557 11,203 10,663
18 Creditors: amounts falling due after one year
Group College Group College
2020 2020 2018 2018
E"0OD E 000 E'GDD E'000
ESFA Loans 4 655 4,655 4 856 4,855
ESFA Conditonal Gramt - - 593 s03
Finance Leages - - 28 28
Deferrad income - gavemnment capital grants 33,5956 33,666 a5, GBE 35 588
Taotal 38,621 JBIEH 4niuu MIBEE

LH.
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

18  Maturity of debt

Loans & Overdraft
Loans and overdrefts are repayable as foliows:
Group College Group College
200 2020 2019 2018
£'000 £'000 E"000 £000
I frve years or more 4 655 £ 655 4 B55 4 G55
Total #E 4!5-55 llIEEﬁ #lﬁﬂ-

The Terms of the £4 655m EFSA loan is an annual fixed Interest rale of 1.66%, repayable m installments starting in
July 2027

h
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

20 Provisions
Hidden Enhanced Total
Penslons penslons

£"0i0d E"000 E"000
At 1 August 2099 145 808 953
Espengiiure in the period {7H) {BD) (158}
Charge to IBE 216 - 216
Actuarial Gain for the year ; B &1
Interast Cosls - 1B 16
At 31 July 2020 281 805 1,088

Dafined benefit coligations relate to the liablities under the College’s mermbership of the Local Government Pension
Scheme. Further details ara given m Note 23.

The Hiddan pension provision relates to the LGPS scheme which requires that ampene who is made redundant over
the age of 55 has to draw an immediate penson. The incrasmental cost of the addional years pension payments is
charged & a one off invoice 1o the employer

The enhancad pension provision relates to the cost of staff who have already left the Caollege's employ and enhanced
commitments have been made historically. This provision has been recalculated in accordance with guidance isswed
by the funding bodies,

The principal assumptions for this calculation are:

2020 2018

Price inflation 2.20% 2.20%

Inferest rabe 1.30% 2.00%
21 Cashand cash equivalents

At 1 August Cash Other At 31 July

2019 flows changes 2020

E"DOO E'000 £'000 £'000

Cagh and cash equivalents f,008 3,097 6,167 15,182

Total 6,008 3,017 6,1 15,192

————— e e

AL 3151 July 2020, £4.6m relates to cash held by The Oxford Parinership in Saudi Arabia, This would not be available
for use by the wider group without withholding tax implications

22 Caplial commitments
Group and College
2020 2019
£°000 E'000

Cammitmants contracted for at 31 Juky 2020 1,323 178
——— ——
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

23 Defined benefit obligations

The Cellege's employees belong to four principal post-employment benefit plans: the Teachers” Pension Schame
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff. and the Oxford County Council, Royal County of Berkshine
& Surrey Council Local Government pension schemes (LGPS) for nan-teaching staff, which are sach managed by
their respective County councils. Al of them are multi-employer defined-benefit plans The pension costs are
assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries The latest formal sctuasial valiation of
the TPS was 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March 2018

Restated
Total pension cost for the year 2020 019
E'000 £'000
Teachers Pension Scheme: contributions paid 369G 2000
Oiher pension schemes contributions pald 20 B1
Local Governrment Pension Scheme;
Contribufions pasd 4,434 2771
FRE 102 {28) charge 4,162 3409
Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income 8.6598 6,180
Total Pension Cost for Year 12,382 B.261

Contributions ameounting to £825 555 (201 9-£748 867) were payable 1o the schames and are included in creditors.
Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a stalutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, govermed by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014, These regulations apply 1o leachars in schools, colleges and other
educational establishments, Membership is automatic for teachers and lecturers at aligibée instiutions. Teachers
and lecturers are able io opt out of the TPS.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a ‘pay a8 you go' basis — these contributions, along
with those made by employers, are credited to the Exchequer under arrangements governed by the above Act.
Retiremint and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament. Undear tha definllions set oul
in FRE 102 (28.11), the TPS is & multi-employer pension plan. Tha coltege is unable to identify #s share of the
underlying assets and kabilities of the plan,

Accordingly, the college has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its contributions o
the scherne as if it were a defined-contribution plan. The coliege has set out above the information avadable on the
plan and the imphications for the colege in terms of the anticipated contribution rates. The valuation of the TES is
carried oul in fine with regulations made under the Public Service Pension Act 2013, Valuations credit the teachers'
pansion account with a real rate of retum assuming funds are invested i notional investments that produce ihat real

The Teachers” Pension Budgeting and Valuation Account

Although teachers and leclurers are employed by various bodies, their retirement and other pengion beneds,
inchsding annual increases payable under the Pensions (Increase) Acts are, as provided for in the Superannuation
Act 1972 paid cut of monies provided by Parliament Under the unfunded TPS, teachers’ contributions on & ‘pany-as-
you-go' besis, and employers’ contributions, are credited to the Exchequer under arrangemenis governed by tha
above Act Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament

The Teachers' Pensions Regulations require an anneal account, the Teachers' Pansion Budgeting and Valuation
Account, to be kept of receipts and expenditure (including the cost of pensions’ increases). From 1 Agril 2001, the
Account has been credited with & real rale of return which is equivalant to assuming that the balance in the Accaunt
s invested in notional investments that produce that real rate of retum.
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Motes to the Accounts {continued)
23 Defined benefit obligations [continued)

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Schame

The ktest actuanal review of the TPS was camed out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation repart was published by
the Department for Education (the Department m April 2013, The valuation repored total scheme habdities
{pensians currently in payment and the estimated cosl of future banedils} for senvice to the effective date of £218
billion, and notional assets {estimated future contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation
date) of £158 billion giving a noticnal past sanace deficit of E22 bilion)

As & resull of the valuation, new employer contribution rates were s=i at 23.68% of pensicnable pay fram September
2018 onwards (compared to 16.48% during 201819). DfE has agreed to pay a teacher pension employer
contributicn grant to cover the additional costs during the 2018-20 academic year.

A full copy of the valuation repod and supporting documentation can be found on the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
website,

Scheme Changes

Following the Hutten report in March 2011 and the subsequent consultations with trade unions and other
represenizive bodes on reform ol the TPS, the Depariment published a Proposad Final Agreement. selting out the
design for a reformad TPS 1o be implemeanted from 1 Apnl 201 &

The key provisions of the reformed scheme include: a penson hased on career average earnings, an accrual rate of
1/571h and a Marmal Pension Age equal to State Pension Age, but with options to enable members to ratire earber
o¢ later than their Nommal Pension Age. Impodanily, pension benedits buit up before 1 April 2015 will be fully
profected

In addition, the Proposed Final Agreement includes a Govermnment commilment that those within 10 years of Narmal
Pension Age on 1 April 2012 will see no change to the age al which they can retire, and no decrease in the amount
of pension thay receive when they retire. There will atso e further transitonal protection, tapered over a three and a
half year pariod, for people who would fall up to thrée and a half years outside of the 10 year protection.

Regulaticns giving effect 1o a reformed Teachers' Pension Scheme came inle force on 1 April 2014 and the
reformed schema commenced on 1 April 2015

The panson cosis paid ta TPS in the year amounted to £3.696 365 (2019 £1,5990 731},
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

23 Defined benefit obligations (continued)

FRS 102 (28)

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102 (28 11). the TPS is 8 multi-employer pension scheme. Tha Caollege &=
unabkde o identify #s share of the underlying assets and Eabilities of the schame,

Accordingly, the College has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for 25 contributions
o the scheme as if it were a defined-contribution plan. The Callege has set out above the information available on
the plan and the implications for the Callege in terms of the anticipated contribution rates

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit plan, with the assets held In separate funds adminstered by Oxfordshie
Local Authority, Royal County of Barkshire & Surrey Council The total contribution made for the year ended 11
July 2020 was £5731762 of which employer's contributions totalled £4,433 588 and employess' confributions
totalled £1,298,124. The agreed contribution rates for future years are in the range of 13.5%-28 4% for employers
and range from 5.5% fo 7.5% cent for employees, depending on salary.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions

The following infarmation is Based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2019 updatad fo 31 Juk
2020 by a qualified independent actuary.

At 3 July At 31 July

2020 2013

Rate of increase in salanss 2.1% - 3.25% 2.7% - 16%
Future pensions increases 2.1% - 2.25% 2.40%
Discount rate for schame liahdlites 1.40% 2.10%
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.1% - 2.25% 2.40%
Commutation of pensions 1o lump sums 429, - 50% 44% - 50%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future imgravements in mortality rales. The
assumed life expactations an retirernent age 65 are;

At 31 July At 31 July
2020 2019
years years
Retiring foday

Males ei5-222 22.0-227
Fematkes 241 - 243 240-245

Fadirng in 20 years
Males 22.8 237 241
Females 256 25T - 284
Sensitivity analysis At 3 July AL 31 July
2020 2014
£°000 £°000
Average Real Discount rate reduction of 0.5% 2005-12721  2,345-12,573
Average Salary Incresse rate increase of 0,.5% 125 - 638 178 - 1,308
Average Pension Increase rate Increass of 0.5% 2690-11,885  2.180- 11,0587

a7




Notes to the Accounts (continued)

23 Defined benefit obligations (continued)

The Corporation’s share of the assets in the plan were:

Long-term
rate of
returm

expected at

31 July

020

Equities GE%
Baonds 17%
Proparty D%
Cash B%
Citeer 2%
Total market value of assets 100%

Activabs Leaimeng
Arrasal Heporl and Financsal Staemenis
Far the pear andad 38 July 2020

Fair Value Long-temm Fair Value
at 31 July rate of at 31 July
2020 return 2019

expected at

31 July

2019
£'000 £'000
73,853 B6% 79,314
18 422 17% 20,430
10,458 &% 10,616
5976 5% §.010
2,241 3% 3,606
112,050 100% 120,176

The armourt included in the statement of financial posfion in respect of the defined benefit pension plan 18 as

loliows

Fair walue of plan assals

Prasent value of plan liabilites
Prasent value of unfunded liabilities
Met pansions (liability)

5

Restated
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
112,050 120,176
{208, 384) (185 088}
{B5) (B5)
{96,419} (66, B05)

———




Notes to the Accounts {continued)

23 Defined benefit obligations (continued)

Acivaie Leaming

Arrwnl Report and Financial Statermants

For the year ended 31 July 2500

Amaunts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of the plan are as follows:

Amounts included in staff costs
Current serioe cost

Past sendice cost
Total

Amounts included in investment costs

Met interest costs

Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Refurn on pension plan assels

Experience gains / (losses) arising on defined benafit chligations
Changes in asaumptions underlying the present value of plan labilibes
Actuarial loss in respect of enhanced pension provision

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensig Incoma

Restated

20240 2019

£°000 £°000

B.T34 5,459

a2 1,173

4,766 6,638
e

1,443 =K

1,442 883

] ———

(12,620 4477

5863 i)

{18,163} [13,295)

. )

___123,981) (8,875




Notes to the Accounts (continued)

23 Defined benefit obligations [continued)

Movement in net defined banefit (liability) during the year

Deficit in scheme at 1 Awgust
Miirarmen| in year:
Tranafer in walue of net iabilites
Curren sarvice &oed
Administralion xXpenses
Employer contributions
Pash service cost
Med interast on the defined liability
Aciuanzsl gain of loss
Het defined liability at 31 July

Asset and Liabllity Reconciliation

Changes In the present value of defined benefit obligations

Defined benefit obligations at start of period
Transfer in value of néew liaBilibes ab acquisiton
Curreni service cosl

Interest cosk

Coniribubons by schems participants
Experience ipss on defined benefit obligation
Changes m financial assurnplions

Estirnated benefits pasd

Past Serice cosl

Changes in demographic assumplions
Unfunded pension payments

Defined benefit obligations at end of period

Reconcifiation of Assels

Fair value of plan assets at start of period
Transfer in Value of new assets at acquisibon
Interest on plan assels

Return on plan assels

Emgplover contributions

Contributions by scheme participants
Estimated benefits paid

Adminisiration expenses

Cither achuanial gains

Assets at end of period

Actte Leaming
Arrwml Reped gl Fnanoal Statemanta
Far the yaar anded 31 July 2020

Restated

2020 2019
E'D0d £'000
(66, BIE) {21,722}
(31,955

{8, 734) {5,455
() (78]

4 609 3,230
(32} (1,179}
(1.44% (963}

(23,5200 (8.747)
!Hl-ﬂ-ﬁl !E'EIEHi

Restated

2020 2019
E'oon E'DO0n
187.00 1 80 453
B4 580

B T4 5458
3,889 3,161
1,290 arg
6,563} 4
18113 20706
(3,842 {2.030)
a2 1,178

A0 (7.411)

i7) 76

208,459 187.071

120,176 58,746
. 52 621
2,549 2178
(11,353) 4 4T7
4,809 3230
1,280 955
(3,942) (2,031)
(12} -
1,257

112,050 120,176
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

24 Related party transactions

Due to the nature of the Group's operations and the composition of the Board of Governaors {baing drawn fram
local public and private sector organisations) it is inevitable that transactions will take place with crganisations n
which & member of the Board of Govemnors may hawe an interest,

All transactions involving organisations in which @ member of the Board of Gowernars may have an inlerest are in
accordance with the Group's financial regulations and normal procurement procedires.

The total expenses paid to or on behalf of the Governors during the year was £1.379 for 2 Governars, (2019
£2,301, 3 Governors). Thes represents travel and subsistence expenses and other owt of pockel expenssas
incurred in attending Governor meetings and charity events in their official capacity Consultancy Services of
£1.706 were provided by 1 Governor during the year. No Governor received any compensation for (heir service as
a Governor (with the exception of the reimbursement of expenses).

Transactions with the ESFA and OF S are dedailed in notes 3 and 17

On the 14th September 2018, the Group acquired 100% of the shares of the Oxford Partnership, which from that
point has been fully consalidated into the Group accounts as per the accounting policy for subsidiaries. For the
period between 1st August 2015 & 14th Septenber 2018, Joint venture associate accounting was maintained and
a loss of £224, 368 was recognisad.

In 2018, the Group charged The Oxford Partnership LLC £5,000 000 for Leadership & Curmiculum Development
Consultancy Services

Activate Learning Education Trust activly i the year relates 1o the agreed charges under the SLA agreement o
previde Group Senices, plus some payments made on behalf of ALET, Dwring the year E780 968 was chargad 1o
ALET, representing charges for services for the year and £31,560 of recharged costs and therefore nol impacting
on the IBE. The balance outstanding on the account at 31 July 2020 was £86 451

25 Amounts disbursed as agent

Learner support funds
2020 2014
£' Oiini E"D0D
Balance unspent 1 August 184 1548
Met grants from the ESFA 1,003 1,053
1,281 1.211
Disbursed o studenis (1.128) {970
Admmistration cosis [54] (53
Balance unspent as at 21 July, included m craditors 48 188

Funding body grants are available solely for students. In the majonly of instances, the College only acts as a
paying agent. In these circumstances, the grants and related disbursements are therefore excluded fram the
Statement of Comprehensive Incanms,

&1
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

26 Contingent liabilities

The sharehalder of The Chdord Partnership is obligsted to issue a Performance Bond in favour of The CoSeges of
Excalerce (the local funding agency). Aclivate Leaming has such a bond in place which can only be called if The
Oford Parinership fails 1o see through its defivery contract. The bond i undenaritten by insurance cover provided to
Lioyds Bank by UK Expart Finance, meaning the maximum continge liability is crca £0.7m.

The Group is currently appealing agains! income tax and withholding tax detarminations from the Saudi Arabian tax
autharity in ralation o certain tax reatments adogled by the group's subsidiary company, The Owlord Partnemship
LLE. for ke fingncial years 2015 to 2018, Although the Group have received professional advice that the tax
tregtments used are appropriate and in accordance with rebevan legislation, there is uncertainty over whether the
appeals wil be successhul and, s a resull, the Group has provided £5.8m within these Financial Staterments which
represenis the full amount requesied by the fax avthority, The amount & contained wihin the Corporation &
Withholding Tax balance in note 17

The subsidiary has not received any further determinations for the financial penods after 2018, however, the Group
believes there is @ contingent liabiity m respect of further tax kabilities relating 1o 2019 & 2020 which may arise & the
previously submitted tax returns are challenged by the Saudi Arabian tax authority at a fulure date. The Group is
unable to determine at the current fime what the possible financial impact could be if the tax relurns are chafengsd.

27 Acquired Subsidiary Assets

On 14th September 2019, the company increased #s shareholding to 1,000 shares of The Oxlord Partnership LLC,
This now raprasents 100% of the share capaal This changed the accounting treatment fram Joint Venlure Equity
recognition to Subsidiary Accounting, resulting in ful eonsolidation and recognition of The Oxford Parnership LLC
inta the Financial Statements of the Group

The follswng tebles summarnse those Assels and Liabdibes acquired on the 1dth September 2018. The value =
racognised in Activate Leaming Financial Slatements.

The Oxford Partnership LLC Book &
Fair Value
Eon
Tiotal Fimed Assets 303
Currenl Assets 8,776
Total Azsets 2,078
Current LEsbilities 10,957
Long-erm Liabilities 130
Total Liabilities 11,087
Net Liabilities {2,008)
Add Residuz! Associate Invesiment balance 742
Met Impact of Acquistion 1,266

Wiihin the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year to 315t July 2020 thee effect of the
cansolidation of The Oxford Partnarhsip since the 14th September 2018 is lo increasa Group Income by £32 Zm and
Group Suplus by £3.4m,

2



Aciivate Leaming
Annual Repor and Financal Sialenents
For |1 year ended 31 Sy POI0

Notes to the Accounts (continued)

28 Operating Leases
At 318t July 2020, the College had minimum lease payments undar non-cancellable operating leases as foliows
Future minimum lease payments due 2020 019

E'000 E'D00
Land & Buildings

Maot fater than one year an 2B
Later than one year and not later than 5 years - g
Later than five years
30 a7
—_——
Other
Mot later than one year 1683 114
Later than one year and not later than 5 years 2449 157

Later than five years

1
437 72
 ——— ———e—

b
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

29 Prior Year Adjustment

During the crestion of the annual pensicn funding valuation for 18720, the actuaries acting on behaff of the
Oufordshirs LGPS discovered an ermar within the previous years provided reports. This ermor was a double count of
past senice liabilities relating to members transfarred 1o the Oxiordshire Pension Scheme as part of the merger with
Reading College m 2011

This errorhas been cormacted by restating each of the affecled financial statement line itwms for the prioe penads as

folows:
Balance Sheet 2048 {increase)l 2018 2018 (Increasel) 2018
{Extract} Decrease Restated Decrease Restated
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'o00
Defined benefit Obhgations (81,042 15047  (B5 BOE) (35, 303) 13,581 (21,722}
Met Ansels 45782 ¥ 15,047 60,829 2 654 131531 1!-!23-5
Incame and axpenditure aceount 33817 15047 48 664 (2.481) 13,581 4100
Total unrestricted reserves d&?ﬂi 1E|MT EI}.HH; 2!554 13,681 1E-|235
Statemnent of Comprehensive Income 2019 (Increase)l 2019
{Extract) Decrease Restated
E 000 £ 00 £'000
Steff Coste (45.415) 126 (45,289)
Intesest & Other Finance Cosis (2, 336) 382 (1,954}
Surplus for the year 52,961 508 53,469
Actuarial loss in respect of pension schemes [9,833) 458 (8 875)
Total comprehensive income for the year 43,128 1,466 44,694
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Group members

Calenes
Banbury and Bicester Callege
Bracknell and Wokingham Callege
City of Oudford College
Farnham College
Guildford Collage
Merriat Wood College
Reading College
Thi Cutford Partnership coleges
(Saudi Arabia)

Echoola
The Bicester School

- Bicester Technology Studio
Theals Grean Schoo
UTE Heathrow
LT Oufordshare
TG Reading
LUTE Swindan

Training

- Activate Apprenticeships

= Activate Business Schocl







